Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT /

To the Members of Tata Sponge Iron Limited /
Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements/

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Tata Sponge Iron
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information./

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit
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procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opimion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9. The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017,
were audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide
their report dated April 26, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order™), and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 1, 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i

il.

iit.

iv.

Kolkata

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31,
2018 on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer
Note 30 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2018. /

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
31, 2018 except for amounts aggregating to Rs 4.28 lakhs, which according to the
information and explanations provided by the management is held in abeyance due to
pending legal cases. (Refer Note 42 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements).

The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009

==t

Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner

April 17, 2018 Membership No.: 057572
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Sponge Iron Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by
the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009

Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No.: 057572
Kolkata
April 17,2018



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata
Sponge Iron Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31,
2018

ii.

iii.

iv.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the
year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 on property, plant and
equipment to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book
records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
investments made and guarantees and securities provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax except for
arrears of Rs. 513.83 lacs outstanding for a period of more than six months as on March 31, 2018,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax with
effect from July 1, 2017 and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of service tax and duty of excise as at March 31, 2018, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of Income Tax, Sales
tax, Duty of customs, value added tax as at March 31, 2018 which have not been deposited on
account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Period to which | Forum where the dispute
statute (Rs. in lacs) the amount is pending

relates
Income Tax Income Tax 282.10 2014-15 Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 2015-16 Tax (Appeals)
Central Sales | Central Sales 66.71 2005-06 High Court of Orissa
Tax Act, 1957 | Tax 6.02 1987-88
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viit.

ix.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

1992-93 Deputy Commissioner of
1993-94 Commercial Taxes
Orissa Sales Sales Tax 2.45 1992-93 Assistant Commissioner
Tax Act,1947 2000-01 of Sales Tax

6.10 1987-88 Deputy Commissioner of
1989-90 Commercial Taxes
1990-91
1988-89
Customs Act, Customs Duty 3,311.05 2012-13 Customs, Excise and
1962 Service Tax Appellete
Tribunal

Orissa Value Value Added 7.14 2005-06 Commissioner of

Added Tax Tax Commercial Taxes

Act, 2004 129.89 2006-07 Additional Commissioner
of Commercial Taxes

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under audit. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009
Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No.: 057572
Kolkata

April 17, 2018



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Standalone Balance Shest as at 31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs
Notes As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and eguipment 03 14,666.50 15,079.72
(b) Capital work-in-progress 03 582.19 563.48
(c) Intangible assets 04 233.03 390.95
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 05 7,277.69 186.01
(ii) Loans 06 15.29 19.71
(iii) Other financial assets 07 6,412.84 1.020.11
(e) Non current tax assets (net) 19A 2,812.63 2,812.63
(f) Other non-current assets 08 17,478.59 17.471.43
Total non-current assets 49,478.76 37,544.04
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories o9 8,408.87 4,907.66
(b) Financial assets
(i} Investments 05 12,685.45 26,142.10
(i) Trade receivables 10 5,980.50 3,576.67
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 110 11,249.38 30,466.39
(iv) Other bank balances 11 (i) 30,911.33 207.57
(v) Loans 06 252.20 279.91
(vi) Other financial assets 07 929.29 72117
(c) Other current assets 08 1,628.34 734.49
Total current assets 71,945.36 67,035.96
Total assets 121,424.12 104,580.00
Equity and liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 1,540.00 1,540.00
(b) Other equity 13 97,102.60 84,944.50
Total equity 98,642.60 86,484.50
(2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 14 1,168.89 1,281.39
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 1,798.21 1,905.71
Total non-current liabilities 2,967.10 3,187.10
Current liabilities
(&) Financial llabilities
(i) Trade payables 16 6,690.16 5,252.46
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 422.78 335.01
(b) Provisions 14 5,145.03 4,779.72
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 19 5,390.33 3,234.86
(d) Other current liabilities 17 2,166.12 1.306.35
Total current liabilities 19,814.42 14,908.40
Total liabilities 22,781.52 18,095.50
121,424.12 . 104,580.00

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to our report of even date

F
?(Chartered Accountants

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury A M Misra Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No. 057572

S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2018

I Revenue from operations

il Other income

il Total income (I + 1)

IV Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and stock
in trade
Exclse duty on sale of goods
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

V' Profit before tax (lll - V)

Vi

Tax expanse:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax
Total tax expense Vi

VIi Profit for the year (V - VI)

VIl Other comprahensive income
Itens that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the deflned benefit plans

(b) Income lax relating to items that will not be
raclassified to profit or loss

IX Total other comprehensive income

X Total comprehensive income for the year
(VI+VI)
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive income
for the year)

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10
each) :

(1) Basic (in Rs.)

(2) Diluted (in Rs.)

X|

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Notes

20
21

22
23

24
25
28
27

27.1A

29

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass referred to our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number - 304026 E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No. 057572

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018

b

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs

Year ended
31 March, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A M Misra
Chairman

S KMishra
Chlef Financial Officer

Sanjay Kumar Pattnalk
Managing Director

Sanjay Kasture
Company Secretary

81,864.64 81,516.07
4,301.21 3,702.03
85!935.?5 §5.218.10
50,058.31 36,968.26
(473.47) 324.91
1,647.81 5,786.30
4,180.44 4,630.97
324.87 244.40
1,230.28 1,276.31
7,979.38 7.640.87
E‘IQ‘TAZ 56,870.82
21,018.33 8,347.28
7,099.00 2,669.00
(166.38) {195.76)
6,932.62 2,473.24
1406571 58Ta0_
170.13 (208.21)
(68.88) 72.06
111.25 (136.15)
14,196.96 5,737.89
91.47 38.14
91.47 3814




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Standal S of ch. in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2018

A) Equlty share capital Notes Rs. in lacs
(a) As at1 April, 2016
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 12 1,23000
Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31 March, 2017

(15,400,000 equlty shares of Rs. 10 each) 1.540.00

Changes in equily share capital during the year a

As at 31 March, 2018

(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 1,540.00
,540.

B) Other equity Rs.in lacs
items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
Other Items of
Genera} Retained other Total
Particulars Notes reserves eamings  comprehensive
income
As at 1 April, 2016 13 77,000.00 4,166.21 (106.09) 81,060.12
Profit for the year - 5,874.04 - 5,874.04
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined beneflt plans - - (208.21) (208.21)
Tax Impact on other comprehensive
Income (OCH) g g ey =08
Dividend pald during lhe year - (1,540.00) - (1,540.00)
Tax on dividend . (313.51) - (313.51)
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 13 77,000,00 8,186.74 (242,24) 84,944.50
Profit for the year - 14,085.71 - 14,085.71
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on
defined benefit plans ) ) 17043 17043
Tax impact on aother comprehensive
ingome (OCI) - - (508.88) (68.88)
Dlvidend paid during the year - (1,694.00) - (1,694.00)
Tax on dividend - {344.86) - (344.86)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 13 77.000.00 20,233.59 (130.99) 97,102.60
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity referred to our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number - 304026 E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik

Pinaki Chowdhury A M Misra
Partner Chairman Managlng Director

Membership No. 057572

Sanjay Kasture

S K Mishra
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
St Cash flow for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Rs.in lacs

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 21,018.33 8,347 28

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,230.28 1,276.31
Amortisation of lease hold tand 047 047
Dividend from current investments {1,121.54) (1,290.51)
Changes in fair value of financial assats at fair value through profit & loss (4.41) =
Changes in fair value of non - current financial assets at fair valus through (91.88) -
profit & loss
Dividend received from aquity investments (74.48) (70.00)
Gain on sale of current investments - (a.81)
Loss on dispasal of property, plant and equipment 349 6.96
Interest income (2,762.68) (2,1608.16)
Finance cost 324.67 244.40
Liabilities no longer raquirad written back (0.29) (27.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes 18,522.29 8,315.58

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in Inventories (3,501.21) (1,671.44)
(Increase) in Trade raceivables (2,303.83) {633.62)
(Increase) in Other current assets (893.35) (344.51)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans 27.711 (279.91)
Decrease in Other financial assets 155.90 250.50
{increase) in Other non-currant assets (5,395.94) (927.32)
Increase in Trade payablas 1,437.70 1,183,14
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 48.78 (464.59)
Increase in Other-current liabilities 860.06 627.75

210.77 (639.86)

Increase / (Decraase) in Provisions - current

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions - non current (112.50) 594.80
Cash generated from operations 9,053.88 4,010.49
income taxes paid {4,943.53) (1,843.42)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,110.356 2,167.07

8. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment (including capital (680.98) (388.07)
advances)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.21 6.50
Payments to acquire current investments (42,756.54) {66,862.53)
Payments te acquire Non- current investments {7.000.00) -
Proceeds from dispasal of current investments 56,217.60 68,074.30
Movement in fixed deposits (30,684.00) -
Interest received 2,398.53 1,948.22
Dividend received from aquity investments 74.43 70.00
Dividend received from current investments 1.121.54 1,290.51
Net cash generated /{used) in investing activities (21,308.16) 5,138.93
C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend paid {1,674.34) (1.531.61)
Tax on dividend paid (344.86) (313,51)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,019.20) (1.845.12)
(19,217.01) 5,460.88

Net increase / (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents
Cash and cash eq at the beginning of the year (Refer note 11) 30,466.39 25,0056.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 11) 11,249.38 30,466.39

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Cash Flow Statement
This is the Standalgne Cash Flow Statement referred ta our report of even date

Far Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury A M Misra Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No. 057572

S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kalkata
Oate: 17 April, 2018

Y



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Background

TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED ('TSIL' or 'the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated in India with its registered office at
Joda, Odisha, India.

The Company has a presence acrass the manufacture of sponge iron and generation of power from waste heat as detailed under
segment information in Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company is a subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited. The equity shares of the Company are listed on two of the stock exchanges in
India i.e. NSE and BSE.

The standalone financial statements were approved and authorized for issue with the resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors
on April 17, 2018.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements.
These palicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1. Basis of preparation

A. Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

B. Historical Cost Convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis except for the following:
i) certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
ii) defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

C. Current versus Non-current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) expected to be realised or intended to be soid or consumed in the normal operating cycle,
i) held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

iv)
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

i) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

ii) it is incurred primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as nan-current.

2. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred

Depreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values




Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated
residual values, over their estimated useful lives in accordance with Schedule Il to the Act except in respect of the following
categories of the assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated

technological changes, etc.

Category of assets Useful life
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Each companent of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the cost of that item
is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the other components of the item.

The useful lives, residual values and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted
if apprapriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are included in profit or loss within ‘Other Income’/*Other Expenses’. Advances paid towards the
acquistion of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as ‘Capital Advances’ under
other non- current assets and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready to use are disclosed under ‘Capital Work-

in progress’.
Intangible assets
Railway sidings constructed

Railway sidings is included in the Balance Sheet as an intangible asset where it is clearly linked to long term economic
benefits for the Company. In this case it is measured at cost of construction and then amortised on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation Method and Period

Railway sidings amartised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives i.e 5 years.

Software costs acquired

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. It has a finite useful life and are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs assaociated with
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of

implementation/system integration services, where applicable.

Amortisation Method and Period

Intangible assets are amartised over a period of 5 years. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically
including at each financial year end.

Research and Development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on development that do not meet the specified criteria under Ind AS
38 on ‘intangible Assets’ are recognised as an expense as incurred,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identiflable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating

units).
Leases

As A Lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred fo ihe Company as iessee
are classifed as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or less on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to

compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases

[nvestment in subsidiaries



Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment loss, if any. Investments are tested for
impairment wherever event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial fiabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recagnised immediately in profit or loss.

Investments (Other than investments in Subsidiaries) and Other Financial Assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses is either recorded in the statement of profit and loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this depends on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this depends on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies the debt investments when and only when the business madel for

managing those assets changes.
(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The the Company classifies its debt instrument as amortised cost
measurement categories. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Squtty Inshuments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no

subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in ‘Other Income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iify Impaiment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Note 28 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, ‘Financial
Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets




A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially al! risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not

derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset.
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(v} Dividend Recognition

Dividend is recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.
(vi) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value resuit
in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realised.

(vii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company

or the counterparty

10. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customners for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business, Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

11. Employee Benefits

A.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recdgnised in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as ‘Provision for Employee Benefits’ within ‘Current Provisions’ in the Balance Sheet.

Post-employment Benefits
)] Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, direcily in Other Comprehensive income. These are inciuded in ‘Retained
Earnings' in the Statement of Changes in Equity

i) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised
as expenses for the period in which the employee has rendered the service



C. Other Long -term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of
expected future benefits in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obiligations are presented under ‘Provision for Employee Benefits’ within ‘Current Provisions® in the Balance Sheet
if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

regardiess of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

12. Income Tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary

differences, unused tax credits and to unused tax losses.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability methad, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities

are not recognised if théy arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or the deferred tax liability is settled.

.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary

differences, tax credits and losses.

Deferred tax assels are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabie right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

13. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases
and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventeries to their present location and condition. Finished goods comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

14. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably

estimated



Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

within the control of the Company or a present abligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannot be made.

15. Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are
net of returns, discounts, rebates, goods and service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties, as
applicable.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities

as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

A. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer as per terms of the contract.

B. Sale of Power

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised based on the units as transmitted to buyer as per the terms of contract
with the customer.

C. Other Operating Revenue
Revenue from sale of coal fines, char and iron ore fines are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the products have passed to the buyer as per terms of contract

D. Income from Investments

Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

16. Foreign currency transactions and translation
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Campany's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the
year - end exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from

the year-end restatement are recognised in profit and loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within
‘Other Income'/'Other Expenses’. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

17. Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directiy attributabie to the acquisition, construction or production of quaiifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation



All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the pericd in which they are incurred.

18. Earnings per Share

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

v

Basic Earnings per Share
/¢

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted Earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and -
the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion

of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpase of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12

months after the reporting period.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments and has been identified as the Managing Director of the Company. Refer Note 35 for

segment information presented.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs
(Rs. 00,000) as per the requirement of schedule I}l, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions, that impact the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these standalone financiat
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods impacted.

This Note provides an averview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each impacted line item in the standalone financial

statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

A. Employee Benefits (Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation) - Refer 11 (B) (i) and (ii)

Post-employment benefits represents obligation that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project
benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over
the employee's approximate service period. based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions
made. The accounting requires the company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of
compensation increase and future mortality rates. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on

the defined benefit abligations

B. Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plants and equipment - Refer Note 2




"

Management reviews its estimate of useful life of property, plant & equipment at each reporting date, based on the
expected utllity of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolesce that may

change the utility of property, plant & equipment.
Contingencies - Refer Note 14

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company, Due to the uncertainty inherent in
such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcomes. The cases and claims against the Company often raise
difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not
limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in
applicable law, in the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal counsel and certain other experts
on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is
probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an

estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.
Deferred Taxes Refer Note - Refer Note 12

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of
deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverability of the deferred tax benefit.
Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned
optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.
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03 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
Rs. In lacs
) As at As at
Carrying amounts of: 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Freehold land 564.08 229.42
Fraehald buildings 2,510.14 2,523.48
Plant and aquipment 11,343.06 12,131.58
Fumiture and fixturas 12.86 1149
Office aquipment 142,63 111.49
Vehicles 93.75 72.26
Sub-total 14,666.50 15.079.72
Capital work-in-pragress §82.19 563.48
Total 582.19 563.48
Rs. infacs
Freehoid Freenold Plant and Fumiture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipment and fixtures equipment
Cost/deemed cost
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 22942 2,766.13 12,940.98 18.36 87.37 20.20 16,132.46
Additions during the year - 251.14 41.49 0.03 6577 30.26 388.69
Assets dispased / written off during the year - - 249 0.07 0.18 20.15 2288
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 229,42 30727 12.979.98 18.32 152.56 100.31 16,498.26
Additions during the year 334.66 157.57 19.41 12.87 B2.82 46,82 664.15
Assets dispased / written off during the year - - 51.18 0.38 10.54 9.99 72,09
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 554.08 3,174, 12,948.21 30.81 225.24 137.14 17,080.32
Rs. in lacs
Freehold Freehold Ptant and Fumiture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipmant and fixtures aquipment
Accumuiated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April, 2016 - 28047 1373 4.49 1333 712 319 14
Charge for the year - 21332 83590 234 2823 2904 1,108.83
yD:;recnauon an assets dispased / written off during the . 123 - 009 811 943
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March, 2017 i 493.79 848.40 .83 41.47 2805 1,418.54
Charge for the year - 170.91 805,61 11.51 49.81 24.83 1,062,67
yD:;recnauon on assets disposed / written off during the . . 48.85 0.38 8.67 9.49 57.39
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March, 2018 - 664.70 1,605.16 17.96 82.61 43.39 2,413.82
Rs. in lacs
Freehold Freehold Plant and Fumniture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipment and fixtures equipment
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 228.42 2,523.48 12,131.58 1149 111.49 72.26 15,078.72
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 564.08 2,510.14 11,343.06 12.85 142.63 93.75 14,666.50

Note :

1 All the above property, plant and equipment are owned by the Company
2 Refer note 37 for information on property, plant and equipment hypothecated as collateral security by the Company

v
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04 Other intangible assets
Rs. In lacs
Carmi ts of: As at As at
EYINgISMONNIDIt: 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Software costs acquired 9.56 -
Railway sidings constructed 223.47 390.95
Total intangible assets 233.03 390.95
Rs. in lacs
Software COs®  Railway sidings Total intangible
acquire ‘constructed assets
Costideemed cost
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 Q.61 725.91 726.52
Additions during the year - - -
Assets dispased / written off during the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 0.61 725.91 726.52
Additions during the year 9.69 - 9.69
Assets disposed / written off during the year - - b
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 10.30 725.91 736.21
Rs. in lacs
Software costs Railway sidings Total intangible
acquired constructed assets
Accl d amortisati
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April, 2016 a6 167.48 168.09
Charge for the year - 167.48 167.48
Amortisation of assets disposed / written off during o
the year > )
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 2017 0.61 334.98 335.57
Charge for the year 013 167.48 167.61
Amortisation of assets disposed / written off during - G
the year =
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 2018 0.74 502.44 503.18
Rs. in lacs
Sofwars C?St: Railway sidings Total intangible
acquire Constructed assets
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 - 390.95 390.95
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 9.56 223.47 233.03

04.1 The amortisation has been included under 'Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note
26).
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05 Investments
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Unquoted : Amount Amount
Quantity (Rs. in lacs} Quantity (Rs. in lacs)
Non- current Investments
Unquoted investment
In in Equity Instr
i in Subsidiary C $
TSIL Energy Limited 1,060,060 106.01 1,060,060 106.01
Investment in Body Corporate @
Jamipol Limited 800,000 80.00 800,000 80.00
Investments in Mutual fund #
1 IDFC Corporate band Direct plan - Growth 16,960,014 2,028.97 -
2 Reliance Floating Rate Fund - Short Tenm Plan 7,220,347 2,029.42 -
(Direct Growth Pian)
3 Rellance Shart Term Fund - (Direct Growth Plan) 9,004,366 3,033.29 =
7,091.68 -
Total Non - currant investments 7,277.69 186.01
Current Investments
Investment in Liquid Mutual Funds #
1 TATA Money Market Fund - Plan A - Daily Dividend 383,789.97 3,843.72 323,600.14 3,240.91
Reinvestment
2 HDFC Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Dally Dividend 652.29 8.65 297,600.51 3,034.99
Relnvestment
3 [IDFC Cash Fund - Reguiar Plan - Daily Dividend
Rainvastment ’ Y 57,463.19 575.58 363,308.59 3,637.02
4 Rellance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Dally 271,809.81 4,167.61 298,066.21 4,556.85
Dividend Reinvestment
5 SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Daily - - 49,943.31 ) 501.06
Dividend Reinvestment
6 Axis Llquid - Regular plan - Dally Dividend
Reinveltment o ) Y 116,735.37 1,168.47 376,475.16 3,767.16
7 gﬁ;’;’?;::'e:'&‘;; Reguiar pian - Dally 768,036.04 76917 2.482,909.11 2,485.37
8 BSL Cash Plus - Daily Dividend Reinvestment. 1,222,204.88 1,225.54 3,189,383.37 3,195.61
9 Sundaram Money Fund Regular - Daily Dividend
Reinvestment - 9 Ve 5,696,336.58 575.11
S gzsv!:'::nk:ﬁk Liguidity Fund-inst-Dally Dividend 36,326.40 363.80 172,194.08 172333
Total current investments 12,685.45 26,142.10
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments 19,963.14 26,328.11
$ Investmenits carried at Cost 106.01 106.01
# Investments carried at Fair value through Profit and Loss 19,777.13 26,142.10
@ Investments carried at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 80,00 80.00
[also refer Note 28(c)]
05.1 Refer Note 28 far information about fair value measurement , credit risk and market risk on investrnents.
Rs. in lacs
06 Loans As at 3t March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Loan to Employees 10.83 8.22 15.25 8.85
Security Deposits-
Considered good 4.46 243.98 446 271.06
Considered doubtful . 22.67 - 22.57
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits . (22.57) - (22.57)
15.28 252.20 19.71 279.91
07  Other financial assets Rs. in iacs

{a) Interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances
(b) Deposit with banks and others with maturity period more than

12 months

[Above deposits includes Rs 2.02 lacs as at 31 March, 2018
(Rs. 2.22 lacs as at 31 March, 2017) pledged with government

authorittes]

As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

Non-current Current Non-current Current

157.10 929.29 120 72117
8,255.74 - 1,018.91

6,412.84 929,29 1.920.11 721.¢




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notas to the Standalone Fi ial its
08 Other assats Rs. in lacs
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Non-current Current Non-current Current
(a) Capital advances 16,824.26 - 16,824.26 -
(b) Advances to related parties {Refer Note 33] - 50.98 - 20.00
(c) Other loans and advances
(i) Advances with public bodies 608.71 946.47 608.71 149.86
(i) Other advances and prepayments 19.29 630.42 11.68 564.16
(i) Prepaid lease payments
- Prepaid lease payments cost 42.42 047 42.42 Q.47
Less: Prepaid lease payments amortisation (16.09) . (15.62) -
17,478.59 1,628.34 17.471.43 734.49
Rs. in lacs
o :::;veenrt gfﬂ:::st and net realisable value) st ASEt
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Raw materials 6,858.03 3,854.26
(b) Finished goods §91.58 218.11
(c) Stores and spares 859.26 835.29
Total inventories 8,408.87 4,907.66
Note: Refer Note 37 for information on inventories hypothecated as security by the Company.
Rs. in lacs
10 Trade receivables As at As at

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Current
a) Unsecured, cansidered good 5,880.50 3,576.67
Total trade receivables 5,880.50 3.576.67
Trade receivables 5,251.50 3,089.90
Receivables from related parties (Refer Note 33) 629.00 486.77
5,880.50 3,576.67
Note:
a) Refer Note 28 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables
b) Refer Note 37 for infarmation on Trade Receivable hypothecated as security by the Company.
Rs. in lacs
11 (i) Cash and cash equivaients As at As at

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(a) Balances with scheduied banks

(1) In current accounts 3,537.41 229.69
(2) In demand deposit accounts 7,711.28 30,235.31
{b) Cash on hand 0.69 1.39
Total Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows 11,249.38 30,466.39

(ii} Other Bank balances
in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts @ 227.33 207.57
Fixed Deposit Accounts (with maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months) 30,684.00 -
30,911.33 207.57
227.33 207.57

@ Includes eammarked balances in unclaimed dividend accounts

(iii) Disclosure of specified bank notes (SBNs)
The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) ar other denomination notes, as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30 March, 2017,
held and transacted during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 is provided in the table below:

Other
Particulars SBNs* denomination Total
(Rs.) notes (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Closing cash in hand as on 8 November, 2016 122,500.00 37,607.50 160,107.50
Add: Permitted receipts - 671.872,00 871,872.00
Less: Permitted payments - (527.434.50) (527.434.50)
Less: Amount deposited in Banks (122.500.00) . (122,500.00)
- 182,045.00 182,045.00

Closing cash in hand as on 30 December, 2016

* For the purposes of this note the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of india.
In the Ministry of Finance, Department of Econamic Affairs number S O 3407(E), dated 8 November. 2016

(iv) There are na repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the year and of the current regorting penod and/pnaf pur!'_od

o



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Fii ial S! t
Rs. in lacs
. . As at As at
12 Equity share capital 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Authorised Share Capital:
25,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2,500.00 2,500.00
(As at 31 March, 2017: 25,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
2,500.00 2,500.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up :
15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,540.00 1,540.00
(As at 31 March, 2017: 15,400,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
1,540.00 1,540.00
(c) Fully paid equity shares
No. of aquity Amount
shares Rs. in lacs
As at 1 April, 2016
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 15,400,000 1.540.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - N
15,400,000 1,540.00

As at 31 March, 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at 31 March, 2018
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 15,400,000 1,540.00

{d) Shares held by holding Company
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017

No. of aquity % No. of equity shares %
shares
Fully paid equity shares
Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company) 8,393,554 54.50% 8,393,554 54 50%
8,393,554 54.50% 8,393,554 54.50%

(e) Detaits of shareholders holding more than 5% of outstanding shares

As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017

No. of equity % No. of equity shares %
shares
Fully paid equity shares
Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company) 8,393,554 §4.50% 8,393,554 54.50%

(f) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has ane class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each sharehoider is eligible for ane vate per share held. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity sharehoiders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after dislribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.
13 Other equity As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
General reserves 77,000.00 77,000.00
Retained eamings 20,233.59 8,186.74
Other items of other comprehensive income {130.99) (242.24)
Total 97,102.60 84,944 50

h




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Fi ial S ts
Rs. in lacs
items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
income
T Other items of Totail
Particulars General reserves LU other
eainngs comprehensive
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 77,000.00 4,166.21 (106.09) 81,060.12
Profit for the year - 5,874.04 H 5,874.04
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans - - (208.21) (208.21)
Tax impact on other comprehensive income (OCl) - - 72.06 72.06
Dividend paid during the year - (1,540.00) = (1,540.00)
Tax on dividend - (313.51) - (313.51)
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 77,000.00 8,186.74 (242.24) 84,944.50
Profit for the period - 14,085.71 - 14,085.71
Remeasurement gains / (Josses) on defined benefit plans - - 170.13 170.13
Tax impact on other comprehensive income (OCI) - - (58.38) (58.88)
Dividend paid during the year - (1,694.00) - (1,694.00)
Tax on dividend - (344.88) - {344.86)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 77,000.00 20,233.59 (130.99) 97,102.60
Rs. in lacs
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
14 Provisions Non current Current Non current Current
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Post-employment defined benefits 1,168.89 117.37 1,281.39 76.64
(b) Other provisions
i)  Provision for VAT, entry tax and sales tax - 2,538.75 2,512.77
iy Provision for cross subsidy surcharge payable - 601.00 601.00
iiiy Provision for interest on income tax - 1,887.91 - 1,589.31
Total provisions 1,168.39 5,145.03 1.281,39 4,779.72
15 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
The following is the analysis presented in the standalone balance sheet:
Rs.in lacs
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Deferred tax liabilities 3,087.66 3,257.06
Defarred tax assets (1,289.45) (1,351.35)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,798.21 1,905.71
Rs. in lacs
Deferred tax Recognised in Recognised in Deferred tax
liability/ profit or loss other liability/
(asset) comprehensive (asset)
as at income as at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018
Deferred tax liabilities
(i) Property, plant and 3,257.06 (169.40) - 3,087.66
equipment
3.257.06 (169.40) - 3,087.66
Deferred tax assets
(i) Provision for compensated
absences (153.20) (0.02) 2 (153.22)
(i) Remeasurement gain/
(loss) arising from defined (72.06) . 58.88 (13.18)
benefit plans
(iii) Disallowances on payment basis (1,126.09) 3.04 - (1,123.05)
(1.351.35) 3.02 58.88 _(1,289.45)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,805.71 (166.38) 58.88 1,798.21

Note: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same goveming taxation laws,

Lo
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Fi ial S t:
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
16 Trade payables 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Current
176.10 16.356

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note below)
(if) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and smalt

enterprises

(a) Trade payables for suppiles and services 5,321.45 4,270.59
(b) Others

- Trade payables for accrued wages and salaries 1,192.61 965.52
Total trade payables 6,690.16 5,252.46
Trade payable 4,486.07 3,277.90
Trade payable to related parties 2,204.09 1,974.56
6,690.16 5,252.46

Total trade payables

Note:
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

Rs. in lacs
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(@) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of the period 176.10 16.35
(ii) Interest due therean - -
(b) Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 and the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day
(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment other than the interest . -
specified under the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid N .
(e) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years for the pumpose - -
of disallowance of a deduclible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Refer Note 28 far information about credit risk and market risk on Trade payables.
Rs. in lacs
R As at As at
17 Other current liabilities 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Advances from customers 110.61 666.11
(b) Other payables
(i) Employee recoveries and employer contributions 62.14 59.97
(i) Statutory liabilities (GST, Excise duty, service tax, sales tax, TDS, etc.) 1,993.37 580.27
Total other current liabilities 2,166.12 1,306.35
Rs. in lacs
B T e As at As at
18 Other financial liabilities 31 March, 2018 a1 March, 2017
(a) Creditars for capital supplies and services 7262 71.05
(b) Other credit balances 122,83 56.34
(c) Unpaid dividends 227.33 207.62
Total other financial liabilities 422.78 335.01
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
19 Current tax liabilities (Net) 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 5,390.33 3.234.86
Total current tax liabilities 5,390.33 3,234.86
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
19 A Non current tax assets 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Advance tax and Tax Deducted at Sources (net of provision) 2,812.63 2,812,63
2,812.63 2,812.63

Total non current tax assets



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Fi 1S
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

20 Revenue from operations

(a) Sale of sponge iron
(including excise duty Rs.1,647.81 lacs up to 30 June, 2017 75,516.56 56,344.27
Rs. 5,785.30 lacs for the year ended 31 March, 2017)

(b) Sale of power 5,541.36 5,003.08
(c) Other operating revenue
-Sale of Iron are fines, coal fines, char and paving etc. 606.63 168.72
Gross revenue from operations 81,664.54 61,516.07
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
21 Other income 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

*

(a) [nterestincome eamed on financial assets that are not
designated at fair value through Profit or Loss

() Bank deposits (at amortised cost) 2,398.13 1,877.04
{Il) Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 364.42 291.12

(b) Dividend income
(i) From equity investments 7448 70.00
1,121.54 1,290.51

(li) From Investment in Mutual fund (current )

(i) Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value 441 )
through Profit and Loss (current) )

(Iv) Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through Profit and Loss (Non - current) 91.68 -

(c) Liabillties no longer required written back 0.29 27.39
(d) Net gain on sale of current investments - 3.81
{e) Net gain on foreign currency transactions 3211 9.34
(f) Other nan-operating income 214.15 132.82
4,301.21 3,702.03

Total other income

01./ f;%:_ At
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
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22 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases of materials

Less: Closing stock
Total cost of materials consumed

Cost of materials consumed comprises
(a) lIron ore
(b) Coal
(¢) Dolomite

Total cost of materials consumed

23 Ch in ies of finished goods

Finished goods
Opening stock

Less: Closing stock
Net {Increase) / d

in finished o

24 Employee benaefits exp

(a) Salarles and wages
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(see Note 34)
(c) Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expense

25 Finance costs

Interest expenses
Interest on statutory dues

Total finance casts

o

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3,854.26 1,835.48

83,062.08 36,987.04

56,916.34 40,822.52

6,858.03 3,854.26

80,058.31 36,968.26
17,724.81 14,492.13
31,866.75 22,170.13
466.78 306.00
§0,068.31 36,068.26

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
218.11 543.02
691.58 218.11
{473.47) 324.91

Rs. In lacs

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3,425.09 3,929.29
398.52 386.07
356.83 315.61
4,180.44 4,630.97

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

324.67

244.40

324.87

244.40

T5.Co. Charl.
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Standal Fi I St

26 Deproci and amorti: p
(a) Depreclation of property, plant and equipment (Refar Note 03)

{b) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refar Note 04)

Total dep ion and amor p

27 Other expenses

(@) Consumption of stores and spare parts
(b) Fuel oll consumed

(c) Purchase of power

(d) Rent

(@) Repairs to bulldings

() Repairs to machinery

(@) Insurance

(h) Rates and taxes

() Freight and handling charges

(i) Commission, discounts and rebates
(k) Packing and forwarding

() Exclse duty on change in finished goods
(m) Other expenses

(1) Legal and professional costs

(2) Advertlsement, promotion and selling expenses
(3) Travelling expenses

(4) Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
(8) Comorate social respansibility expenses

(6) Other general expenses (*)

Total other expenses

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Rs. In lacs
Year ended
31 March, 2017

1,062.87 1.108.83
167.81 167.48
1,230.28 1,276.31
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year anded
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
1,032.2¢ 990.45
111.78 a8.42
10.01 15.88
79.29 76.49
378.67 400.78
1,366.32 1,698.77
70.09 29.36
996.79 526.54
698.56 670.68
4210 4411
488.09 467,28
{35.55) (29.49)
667.75 85775
3318 40.33
136.93 123.80
3.49 6.96
180.46 218.21
1,730.13 1,616.35
7,979.38 7,640.67

(* Includes R&D expensés amounting to Rs. 11.40 lacs (31 March, 2017 Rs.11.51 lacs) paid to Indian Institute of

Technology, Bhubaneswar.

27.1 Payments to auditors

(1) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses
(i) As audltors - statutory audit
() As auditors - quarterly audits
(1) As auditors - tax audit
(i For other services
(iiiy Auditors out-of-pocket expenses

2

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs
Year ended
31 March, 2017

8.72 11.15
7.60 10.92
2.02 202

- 5.09
6.13 2.57
2547 31.75




TATA SPONGE (RON LIMITED

Notes to the Sta Fi ial Sta
2T1A | tax recog dinS of Profit and Loss
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year anded
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Current tax

On profit for current yaar 7,099.00 2,669.00
7,099.00 2.669.00

Deferred tax {Refer Note 16)
In respect of the current year (166.38) (195.786)
(166.38) (185,78)
Total tax expense (Refer reconciliation below) 6,932.62 247324

The income tax expense far the year can be recanclied to the accounting profit as follows:
Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year endad
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Profit before tax 21,018.33 8,347.28

Income tax expense calculated at enacted (ncome tax rate of . 7,274.02 2,888.83

34.608% (31 March, 2017: 34.608%)

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (447.17) (470.85)

Effact of expenses lhat are not deductlbie in determining taxable 106.67 54.83

profit

Others 0.10 043

Incoime tax axp gnised in Statement of Profit and Loss 6,932.62 247324
—

: PN AACT S
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Fi

28 (a) Financial Risk Manag t
market risk. In order to safeguard against any adverse affects on the financial performance of the Company,

U]

(ii)

The Company's activities expose it to credit rsk, liquidity risk and
b are entared where considered appropriate to hedge foreign currency risk expasures, Derivatives are used

derivative financial instrumants viz. foreign forward
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of above risks. The senior executives working to manage the financial risks are accountable lo the Audit committee
and the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance that the Company's financial risks-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and the Company'’s risk appetite.

This Note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees poalicies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below:

Credit risk management:
Credit risk refers to the risk lhat a counterparty may defauit on its contractual abligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk primarily
arises from trade receivables, investments in mutual funds and balances with banks.

Trade Receivables .
Trade receivables are typically unsecured, considered good and are derived from revenue eamed from customers. Customer credit risk is managed as per Company’s policy and

procedures which Invalve credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continually monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit lerms in the
normal course of business. Oulstanding customer receivables are regularly torad and the ship ts to customers are generally covared by letters of credit ar other forms of

cradit assurance.
Other Financial Assets

Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits, loans and investments is managed by Company’s finance department. Invesiments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements. The Company manitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strangth of its counterparties.

Financial Assets that are Neither Past Due Nor Impaired
Mone of the Company’s cash equivalents with banks, loans and investments as at 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017 were past due or impaired. Total trade receivables of Rs.
5,880.50 lacs as at 31 March, 2018 and Rs. 3,576.67 lacs as at 31 March, 2017 consisted of custorner balances that were neither past due nor impaired.

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be ahle to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's
objeclive is to, at all tmes maintain aptimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requiraments. The Cumpany closely monilors its liquidity position and maintain adequate
source of financing. The Campany generates sufficient cash flows from current operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short-term Investments

provide liquidity both in the short-term as well as long-term.

(a) Financing Arrangements
The Company has unutilised fund based arrangement with banks for Rs. 11,000.00 iacs (31 March, 2017: Rs. 11,000.00 lacs). The Camgany has also Non-Fund based facilities with
banks for Rs. 21,315.00 lacs (31 March, 2017: Rs. 31,315.00 lacs) which may be utifised at any time and the banks have a right to lerminate the same wilhout notice.

(b) Maturities of Financial Liabilities
The table below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Within 1 year More than 1 year
Particulars Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

As at 31 March, 2018
Trade payables 6,690.16 -
Other financial liabilities - current 42278 -
As at 31 March, 2017
Trade payables 5,252.46 " -

33501 -

Other financial liabilities - current

E;"(’Charrered Accounian .
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the S

(iii} Market risk:

(iv)

v)

(b)

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company transacts
business in local currency and in foreign currencies (primarily US Dollars). The Company has foreign currancy trade pay and is lherefi pased to foreign currancy risk.
Foraign cumency risk exposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Campany has not enterad into any derivative contracts to hedge

exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk Expasure

The Company does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in the foreign exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Securities Price risk:
The Company is exposed to price risks arising from fair valuation of Company's investment in mutuat funds. The carrying amount of the Campany's investments designated as at fair
value through profit or loss at the end of the reparting period (Refer Note no 5)

Rs. in lacs

Impact on Profit Before Tax

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

NAV -Increase by 1%* 197.77 261.42
(197.77) (261.42)

NAV -Decrease by 1%*
* Hoiding all other variabies constant

Commodity Price Risk

Exposure to market risk wilh respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company's purchase of imparted coal for production of finished goods. Cost of raw materals formsa
the largest portion of the Campany’s cost of sales. Market forces generally detarmine prices for the coal purchased by the Company. These prices may be influenced by factars such
as supply and demand, production costs and global and regional economic conditions and grawth. Adverse changes in any of these factors may impact the results of the Company.

Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed through aperating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts to hedge
exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.

Capital Management:

(i} Risk Management s

The objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company
determines the capital requirement based on annual operaling plans and long-term and other sirategic investment plans. The funding requiraments are met through operating cash
flows generated and the Company does not have any borrowings. The Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

(i) Dividends on Equity Shares
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Dividend Declared and Paid during the year
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2017 of Rs. 11,00 (31 March, 2016 — Rs. 10.00) per fully 11.00 10.00
paid share (Rs, Per Share)
Dividend Distribution Tax on abeve 31 March, 2017 of Rs. 2.24 (31 March, 2016 — Rs. 2.04) per fully 224 2.04
paid share (Rs, Per Share)
Proposed Dividend Not Recognised at the End of the Reporting Period
In addition to the above dividend, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a 20.00
final dividend of Rs. 20 per fully paid share, This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of
sharehoiders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
Dividend Distribution Tax on above (Rs. Per Share) 4.1
(c) Financial Instruments by Category
Financial assets and liabilities
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2018 is as follows:
Rs. in lacs
Fair value
Fair value through through oth.er Amortised cost Total carrying value
profit or loss comprehensive
income
Assets:
Investments in Mutual fund 19,777.13 - . 18,777.13
Investment in Bady Corporate . 80.00 - 80.00
Trade receivables . - 5,880.50 5,880.50
Cash and cash equivalents - - 11,249.38 11,249.38
Other bank balances - . 30.911.33 30.911.33
Other financial assets - non-current - 6,412.84 §.412.84
Other financial assels - current . - 929.29 929.29
Total 19.777.13 80.00 55,383.34 75,240.47
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106.01

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries carried at cost less impairment

Liabillties:

Trade payables - - 6.690.16 6.690.16
7 financial liabililies - nl - - 42278 422.78

Total - - 7.112.84 7.112.94

Financial assets and llabilities
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2017 is as follows:

Rs.in lacs
Fair value Amortised cost Total carrying value
Fair value through through other
profit or loss comprehensive
income

Assets:

Investments in Mutual fund 26,142,10 - F - 26,142.10
Investment in Body Corporate - 80.00 - 80.00
Trade receivables - - 3,576.67 3,576.67
Cash and cash equivalents - - 30,466.39 30,466.39
Other bank balances - - 207.57 207.57
Qther financial assets - non-current s - 1,020.11 1,020,11
QOther financial assets - current - - 721.17 721.17
Total _28.142.10 80.00 35.991.91 52,214.01
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries carried at cost less impairment 106.01
Liabilities:

Trade payables - - 5,252.46 5,252.46
Other financial liabilities - curtent - - 335.01 335.01
Total - - 5,587.47 5,587.47

Fair value measurement:
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for the year ended 31 March, 2017

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset vaiue as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements. Net asset
values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. Accordingly, such net
asset values are analogous to fair market vaiue with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between investors and the

issuers of these units of mutual funds.

(b) The management assessed that fair values of, Current Investments, lrade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets (current), trade
payables, and ather financial liabilities (current), approximate to their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b}

measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments inta three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows below.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Asset Value.
Level 2: The fair value of Financial instruments that are nat traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observabie market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in

[P

(Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using Valuation techniques
31 March, 2018
Laval 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Investment in mulual funds

19,777.13 19,777.13 - - Based on the declared NAV

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI (Unquoted) 80.00 - - 80.00 | (Shares in the investee

company is unlisted and thera
ara: certain restricions  an
disinvestment of such shares
by the Comapany as this is a
siraregic investment. Further,
lhere is a wide range of
possible fair value
measuramenis and the
managament on a prudent
basis has considered to keep
the investment at cost as the
basl representation of fair

80.00

19,857.13 1977713 =

Total financial assets

(Rs. in lacs)
Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

Valualion tachniquas

Particulars As at
31 March, 2017
Level 1 [ Lavel 2 Lave!3
Financial assets |
Investment :n mutual funds 26142 10 26.142.10 | - = Same as abovae.
Investment in equity nstruments at FYTOCI (Unquoted) | 80.00 | - | : - | 8000 s“f’-“"“%_h"-‘.{é CRarte—h
| |
| Total financial assets 2622210 | 25,142 TO:’ { - 80,00 | Mo S5 N AXQ4 |

v
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29 Earnings per share Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Net profit for the year (Rs. In lacs) 14,085.71 5,874.04

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 15,400,000 15,400,000

Nominat vaiue per equity share (Rs.) 10 10

Basic and diluted eamings per share (Rs.) 91.47 38.14

Note: The Campany did not have any potentiaily dilutive securities in any of the period presented.

30 Contingent liabilities Rs. in lacs

As at As at

31 March, 2013 31 March, 2017

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts;
(a) Income tax 159.28 154.04
(b) Odisha entry tax 2,579.93 2,579.93
(¢} Customs duty (Refer Note below) 3,818.44 3.818.44
(d) Demand from Ministry of Coal against Radhikapur coai block [Refer Note 31] 3,250.00 3,250.00
(e) Demand from suppliers 152.13 156213
9,959.78 9,954.54

Note:

The above includes demand received from Commissioner of Customs (Preventive) aggregating to Rs. 4,398.99 lacs pertaining to the financial year 2012-13
on account of levy of additional customs duty on classification of the imported coal as bituminous coal as against Company's classification as steam coal.
During the year, the Company has filed an appeal against the aforesaid order in the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Kolkata. The
Company had paid an amount of Rs. 1,087.94 lacs and recognised the non-cenvatable portion of the duty and applicable interest as expense whereas

cenvatable portion had been recognised as an advance in the year 2012-13.

Rs. in lacs
(b) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(i) Renewable energy purchase obligation 632.89 632.89

(i) Excise Duty 2,472.85 2,349.66
3,105.74 2,982.55

In respect of above, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, is any, pending resolution of the respective praceedings. The
company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above

(c) Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power distribution companies

In 2012-13, the Company injected power to State Grid due to denial of permission for open access by Orissa Power Transmission Corporation Limited
{("OPTCL") to supply power to the parent Company Tata Steel Limited beyond the perfod of invocation af section 11 of Electrcity Act, 2003 by the Government
of Odisha i.e., June, 2012, As a result of which the Campany could nat meet the minimum stipulated criteria of 51% self- plion of g i powerasa
captive power plant and the provisions of Cross Subsidy Surcharge under Electricity Act, 2003 became applicable. The Company filed a case befare the
Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission ("OERC") for relief which was granted ard consequenlly the Company has filed a case hefore Appellate Tribunal of
Electricity ("ATE"), which Is pending for adjudication. As a matter of prudence, an amount of Rs. 801.00 lacs had been provided in the year anded 31 March,
2015. :

(d) The Company had filed a writ pefition befare the High Court of Origsa for sales tax exemption for a period of two years w.e.f. June 10, 1997 as a Pioneer Unit.
The High Court Initially ruled that the Company should pay the sales tax under dispute pending disposal of the writ petition. Accordingly. the Company paid
sales tax, which had not been collected from customers, and amounts aggregating to Rs. 573.73 lacs had been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the years 1997-98 to 1999-2000.

The High Court directed the Sales Tax Authorities to refund the amount after ascertaining that the said refund shall not unjustly enrich the Company. The Sales
Tax Officer passed the order stating that the refund shall unjustly enrich the Comgany against which the Campany has filed a writ petition in the High Court
challenging the corraciness of the assassment and the same (s pending. Pending finalisation of the matter no adjustments have been made In the financial
statements.

As per Industrial Policy Resolution 1892 of Govemment of Odisha, the Company has to pay 2 minimum sales tax of Rs. 252.56 lacs before availing exemplion
from sales tax on incremental sale of Spange iran from Kiln 1 and 2. The Company had paid the above amount until the rate of sales tax was reduced, With
reduction In rate of sales tax, the Company considerad that the above limit of Rs, 252,55 lacs had 10 correspendingly reduce and accordingly mada raduced
paymant. The Company however had provided the differential amount of Rs. 513.83 lacs upto the date of availing the benefiti.e., upto 31 March, 2012. The
Company had started collecting sales tax on sale of spenge iron produced in those kilns w.e.f. 1 April, 2012 and depositing the same with Sales Tax

Authorities after availing set off of applicable input tax credit.

31 (a} Inthe month of November 2012, Ministry of Coal ("MoC") issued natices fo the Company for invocation of bank guarantse of Rs. 3,250 lacs submitted towards
performance of condilions for allocation of coal block against which the Company had filed a writ pelition in the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, which directed the
Company to keep the bank guarantee valid till 30 Movember, 2015 by which date the MoC was directed lo take decision. Meanwhile, the bank guarantee
expired and had not been renewed, since no communication had been received from MoC. Subsequently, MoC issued a notice dated 28 Dacember, 2015,
stating that the bank guarantee be invoked and the aforesaid amount be deposited. Consequent to MoC's nolice, the Company has moved to the Hon'ble High
Court of Delhi, where the matter is pending adjudication. The Company has been advised and has oblained a legal opinion that as the original allocation has
been declared illegai and cancelled by the Hon'ble Supreme Court, the bank guarantee pertaining to such allocation (which is non-est and void ab initio) shall
consequently be deemed to be invalid and void ab initio. Pending finalisation of the matter. the amount continues to be disclosed as a contingent liability.

(b) (i) During pendency of the aforesaid matters in Hon'ble High Caurt of Deihi, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 24 Saptamber, 2014
has cancelled allocation of 214 coal blocks including the Radhikapur (East) Coal Block which was allotted to the Company on 7 February, 2006. The
amount incured on the Radhikapur (East) Coal Block upto 31 March, 2018 aggregates to Rs. 18,040.96 lacs (31 March, 2017: Rs. 18,040.96 lacs)

(i) Pursuant to the judgment of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, the Govemment of India has promulgated Coal Mines (Special Provision) Rules, 2014
("Rules”) for allocation of the coal mines through auction and matters related thereto. In terms of the said Rules, the successful bidder will be calied upon
to pay to the prior allocattee the expenses incurred by the prior allocattee towards land and mine infrastructure.  Pursuant to the judgement dated 9
March,2017 of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi in W.P (c) 973/2015, the Nominated Authority MoC vide its letter dated 1 February, 2018, the Company
has fumished the required statement of expenses and other detaits in the prescribed format on 22 February, 2018. Relying on the legal position and legal
opinion abtained by the Company in respect of the recoverability of the amount, no pravision 1s considered necessary
32 Eslimated amounts of conlracts remalning to be executed on capllal account and not provided for Rs,136.95 lacs (As at 31 March. 2017° Rs 152 484aC5} (T fe——
advances Rs 0.31 lacs (As at 31 March, 2017 Rs 19 06 lacs.) 7 et e T
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33, Ralated party tranaaction
{A) Retated Parties

Relationship

Where Control exists:

Tata Sons Limilsd

Company having significant Influence -
Ultimate Controlling Party (UCP)

Tata Steel Limited

Holding Company

TSIL Energy Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary Company

'during the year

Others with whom transactions have taken place

The Tinplate Company of India Limited

Tata Pigments Limited

The Indian Steel and Wirs Products Limited

Tata Metaliks Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

T™ Internationat Logistics Linded

Mjunction Services Limited

Jamipol Limited

Tala Bluescope Stesd Limited

Joint venture with TATA Steel Limited

Tala Internatianal Limited

Tata International Singapore PTE Limited

TC Travel & Services Limited

Subsidiary of TATA Sons Limited

TRL Krosaki Refractorien Limited

Associate of TATA Slesl Limited

M Sanjay K Pattnaly
(Executive Diractor upto 31 Octaber, 2018 and
Managing Direclor w.e f 1 Novernber, 2016}

Key Management personnel - Executive
Directar (MD)

Mr. D P Deshpande (Managing Director upto 31
October, 2016)

Key Managemanl personnel - Executive
Director (MD}

Mr. D K Banerjee, Mr. P C Parakh, Mr Manoj T

Key Management personnel -Non-

Thomas, Mr Krishi S Dutt, Mr R
Meena Lall, Or_Omkar N Mohanty

Director (NED)

Tala Sponge Iron Limited Employee Provident Fund

= = Past Benefit Plans (PEBP) as
Tata Sponge iron Limited Superannuation Fund per Ind AS 24
Tata Sponge Iron Limited Gratuity Fund
Rs. in lacs
(B} Partigulars of transactions during the year
Sale of goods Purchase of goods Dividend Income Dividend paid
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year anded Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Halding Company
Tata Steel Limited kikived 3584 18,006.49 14,252 45 - - 823.329 83936
Tedal ILTT 3584 1 49 14,252 45 = = 023.29 83038
Fellow subsidlary
Tha Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited - 3143 549 . -
Taka Matahks Limited 198.37 1912 - - -
Tata Pigments Limited - - - 113 - = - -
Total 1837 [FEF] FXE] 062 - . .
iate of Tata Steel
TRL Krosaki Refractories Limited - 57.68 i -
Total - 57.68 . =
Joint venture of Tata Steel
Jamipol Limited - - - 74.48 70 00 -
Tatn Blugscopse Steal Limated - 56.87
[Total - 56.67 . 74,48 | 70.00 P
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Limited
Tata Intemational Limited 8,805.84 4,234 12 2,2271.43 2,148.44 . - B
Tata International Singapore PTE Limited - 20,239.97 12,788.41 -
Total 8,605.84 4,234.12 22,467.40 14,936 .85 - =

b

T

% Co. Chartere 7=




a Partlculars

Sale of

Services recelved

af x| 309

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Yaar ended
31 March, 2018

Year ended

31 March, 2017

Campany having sinnificant influence
Tata Sons Limiled

214.56

159.15

Year ended
31 March, 2017

[Total

214,55

15015

Holding Company
Tata Stael Limited

3.512.20

4,988 45

1020

3089

T

5313.26

488548

40.20

3069

Fellow subsidlary

TM Internaticnal Loglatics Limited

The Tinplale Campany of Indla Limited

| Jamshedour Ulilities & Services Campany Limited

712.22
0.03

689 84
003
0.04

619.90

Ti2.s

4891

Joint Vanture of Tata Steel
i 3

236

230

{Total

Submidiary of Tata Sons Limited

Tata International Limited

Tata Intetnational Singapors PTE Limited
TC Traval & Sarvices Limited

Tata Consultaney Sendees Limied

33.68

2510
3589

668.75
208.90

B50.79

[Total

C ion af key
()

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Remuneration
-Shart term Employee Benefits

-Post Emaloyment Benafits

Tatal

[RiED.

Biting Fees

Mr. AM Misra
Mr. D K Banarjee
Mr. Manoi T Thamas
Mr. P C Parakh
Dr. Omkar N Mohanty
M Krishnava § Dust

Comrmission
Mr. AM Misra
Mr. D K Banerjes
Mr. P C Parekh
Mr. Manoj T Thomas
Dr. Omkar N Mahanty
Mr..Krishnava S Dult

Total

Contribution to PEBP
Tata Sponge Iron Limited Employea Pravidant Fund
T

D

Tata Sponge Iron Limited Superannuation Fund
Tata Sponge Iron Limited Gratuity Fund

107,69
9714

Tatal

38551

(€} Balances Outstanding

Particulars

Trade

As at March 31,
2018

Trada payablas

Advances

Investmants

As at March 31,
2017

As at March 31,
2018

As at March 31,
2017

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017

Ag at March 31, As at March 31
2018 2017

Ci having si

Tata Sons Limited

HoldIng Company

Tata Steal Limited

Fallow subsidiary

TM International Logistics Limited
Tata Metakis Limitgd

The Tinplate Company of India Limited
Tha Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited
Joint venture of Tata Stee)

Tata Bluescope Stoal Limited

Jamipol Limited

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Limited
Tata intornabianal Limied

TC Trovel & Senacos Limded

Tata Consultancy Servicas Limited

486 77

189.21
1,980.19

0.01
0.83

2316

189

13577

1,391 15

108

41137
284
3257

80.00

Total

829.00

48677

2,204.09

197456

20.00

50,98

80.00

| Particulars

As at March 31,
2018

As at March 31
2017

[

Other Current Lisbidies

an

514

NED

Cther Corrent Linbilities

Mr_ A M Minra

Mr DK

Mr. Mangj T Thomas

¢ 2 C Parakh

O, Cmiar ¥ Mahanly

=lalgis]

A Rrishnava 5 Dufl
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34 Employee benefits

(a) Superannuation Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Contribution to superannuation fund 107.69 108.17
107.69 108.17
(b) Post Retirement Gratuity and Ex-MD Pensian

Description of plan characteristics and assaciated risks

Gratuity liability arises on retirement, resignation, and death of an employae. The afa
plus dearnass allowance) upto 30 years of service and beyond 30 years af service,
year of sarvice or part thereof in excess of 6 months, Vesting accurs upan completion of 5 years of service.

rasaid liability is calculated on the basis of 15 days salary (i.e. last drawn salary
the liability is calculated an the basis of one month salary for each completed

The present value of the defined benefit abligation and the related current service cost are measurad using the Prajected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date:

The Scheme is fundad by way of a separate iravacable Trst and the company s expacted to make regular contributions to the Trust. The fund 1s managed by an
insurance company and [he assats are i ted in their cor ional group gratulty preduct. The fund provides 8 capital guarantes of the balance accumulated and
deaclares interast pariodically that is cradited to the fund account. The Trust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in nature and we do not expect
any significant liquidity risks. The Trust is responsible for investment of assets of the Trust as well as day to day administration of the scheme

The gratuity plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

1 Interest risk : A decrease in the Indian govemment bond yield rate (discaunt rate) will increase the plan liability.
2 Salary risk : The prasent vaiue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculatad with ihe assumplian of salary increase rate of plan participants in future: Dawviation in
the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants fram the rate of increase in salary used to determine the prasent value of abligation will have a bearing on

the plan's liability

d the present value of the defined benefit obligation was caried out as at 31

In respect of the plans in India, the most recent actuartal valuation of the plan assets an
lue of defired benafit obligation, and the related current sarvice cast and past

March, 2018 by Mr Ritobrata Sarkar, Fallow, Institute of Actuaries of India, The presant val
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit methad

pecial retirement benefits ta Managing Directors. The retirement benefit incudes indexed manthly

The Board of Diractors of the comipany grants approval far provisions of 5
benefits in short are called as ExMD pension and Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB). Both

pension which is reviewed in svery three years and medical benefits, The
the benefit schemes are available to the spouses of cancern MDs.

The said benefits are not contractual abligation of the company. The provisions of the above benefits can only be given after signing the agreement containing the no-
compete clause, The liabity are not funded by the company and disclosed as defined benefit ptan.

Details of the funded gratuity and unfunded post retirement pension are as follows:

Year anded 31 March, 2018 Year ended 31 March, 2017
Ex - MD . Ex-MD
Bratulty. Pension Gratuily Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
1 Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation
a Opening defined benefit abligation 1,783.95 1,277.01 1,533.44 687.98
b Current service cost 97.14 - 86.52 -
c. Interest cost 119.78 86.79 111.51 50.96
d. Remeasurement (gains)/losses
(i) Actuarial ggins and |ogses arising from changes in 6.41 5 . 57 41
demographic assumption
{ii) Acluaria[ gains and lasses arising from changes in financial (50.12) (63.63) 7309 R
assumption
(iii) Ackuafial gaing and losses arising from changes in (35.96) (55.82) 120.38 (44.58)
experience adjustments
e. Benefits paid (145.58) (74.42) (189.34) (60.74)
f. Past service costs - - - 57598
g. Acquisition cost 3.18 - 48.33 -
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,778.80 1,169.93 1.783.94 1,277.01
2 Movements in the fair value of the ptan assets are as follows:
a, Opening fair value of plan assets 1,783.94 E 157817 E
b Interest income 119.78 - 114.97 -
¢. Remeasurement gains/(losses)
(i) _Rekurn an plan assets (excluding amounts included in net (33.40) . 9.38 )
interest expense)
d Contributions from the employer 25.19 - 22243 .
& Benefits paid (145.58) - (189 34) .
f. Acquisition cost 3.18 = 48 33 -
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 1.753.11 - 1.783.94 -

9 -
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3 Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

a
b

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

Present value of funded/unfunded defined benefit obligation as at
the end of the year

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

(i) Retirement benefit asset - Current

(i) Retirement benefit asset - Non current

(iii) Retirement benefit liability - Current

(iv) Retirement benefit liabilily - Non current

As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

. Ex - MD . Ex-MD
Uit
Gratuity Pension Cratuity Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
1,753.11 - 1,783,94 -
1,778.80 1,169.93 1,783.94 1,277.01
25.69 70.23 - 66.94
- 1,099.70 1,208.07

4 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
Year ended 31 March, 2018

Service cost

(i) Current service cost

(i) Past service cost

Net interest expense

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or
loss

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
The relurn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest expense)

Acluarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic
assumption

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial
assumption

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience
adjustments

Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive
income

Total of defined costs

Year ended 31 March, 2017

Ex-MD Ex-MD
Gratuity Pension Gratuily Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
97.14 - 86 52 -
= 3 - 575.98
- 86.79 (3.46) 50.96
97.14 86.79 83.06 626.94
33.40 . (9.38) ’
6.41 - - 67 41
(50.12) (63.63) 73,09 =
{35.96) (55.82) 120.39 (44.58)
(46.27) (119.45) 18410 22,83
50.87 (32.68) 267.16 649.77

The current service cost, past service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income

5 The plan assets of the Company relating to Gratuity are managed through a trust are invested through Life Insurance Corparation (LIC). The details of investments relating
to these assets are not shown by LIC. Hence, the compaosition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount that each major category constitutes to the
fair value of the total plan assets has not been disclosed

Category of Plan Assets:
Funded with LIC

@

a o oo

Note

Discount rate (per annum)

Expected rate of salary increase (per annum)
Estimated rate of return on plan asset (per annum)
Mortalily rate

Withdrawal rate

- Ages from 20-25
- Ages from 25-30
- Ages from 30-35
- Ages from 35-50
- Ages fram 50-55
- Ages from 55-68

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As at 31 March, 2018

In%

100%

In %

100%

As at 31 March, 2017

Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuity Ex - MD Pension
7.50% 7.50% 7.00% 7 00%
8.00% 6.00% 8.00% 6.00%
7.50% NA 9.10% NA

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)
madified ultimate

1.00%

LIC (1996-98)
Annuitants ultimate

Refer note below

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
modified ultimate

5%
3%
2%
1%
2%
3%

LIC (1996-98)
Annuitanls ultimate

Refer note below

In respect of Ex - MD Pension, the effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by constructing @ Multple Decrement Table taking into account the above
mortality table

&
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As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

7 Duration
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation (Active Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuity Ex - MD Pension
members)
Number of years 7 11 6 6
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Pansion Graluity Ex - MD Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Oblig;
Within 1 year 145.39 72.81 163.55 7131
1-2 year 412.69 148.15 369.08 146.91
2-5 years 1,163.23 378.64 1,202.11 40201
Qver 5 years 2,383.62 1,096.87 2,397 95 939.99
8 The amount included in the Batance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in r t of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuity Ex - MD Pension
Amount Amount Amaunt Amount
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs} (Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,778.80 1,169.93 1,783 94 1,277.01
Fair value of plan assets 1,753.11 - 1,783.84 -
Funded status (25.69) (1,169.93) - (1,277.01)
Expected contribution (best estimate) to funded plans in subsequent
- ( ) P ead 25.69 NA 16355 NA

financial year

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality The sensitivity analysis below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other

assumptions constant

S

a) On post retirement gratuity plan
i) If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/{lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs 104 19 lacs (increase by Rs. 92.58 lacs) [as at 31
March, 2017: decrease by Rs. 96.08 lacs (increase by Rs. 108 21iacs)]
ii) I the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 102 96 lacs (decrease by Rs
93.23 lacs) [as at 31 March, 2017: increase by Rs. 106 16 lacs (decrease by Rs. 96.13 lacs)]
b)  On post retirement pension plan

i) If the discount rate is 100 basis paints higher/(lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs. 135.73 lacs (increase by Rs. 113.35 lacs) [as at 31
March, 2017: decrease by Rs, 69.98 lacs (increase by Rs. 77.01 lacs)}

iiy If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 136 78 lacs {decrease by Rs
116.07 lacs) [as at 31 March, 2017; increase by Rs. 77.39 lacs (decrease by Rs, 70.92 lacs)],

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely thal the change in assumptions
wauld occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting periad, which is the same as that applied in caiculating the defined benefit obligatian liability recognised in the balance sheet

c) Experience on actuarial gain/{loss) for benefit obligations and plan assets:
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Gratuity
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31032017 31032016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Present value of DBO 1,778.80 1,783.94 1,533.44 1,356.52 1,053.91
Fair value of plan assets 1,753.11 1,783 94 1,578.17 1,356.52 1,093.98
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] (25.89) - 4473 h 40,07
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on (79.67) 19348 730 (62.91) (29.12)
plan liabilities
Experience gain / {loss) adjustments on (33.40) 9.38 1138 21 257
plan assets
d) Experience on actuarial gain / (loss) for benefit obligations and plan assets:
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Ex-MD Pension
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31032015 31032014
Present value of DBO 1,169.93 1,277.01 687 98 519.93 462.80
Fair value of pian assets - - - - -
Funded status (Surplus / (Deficit)] (1,169.93) (1.277.00) (687 98) (519.93) (462 80)
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on (119.44) 2283 17021 (6 67) (8.16)

plan liabilities

Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on
plan assets

The company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long term
invesiments thal are n line with the cbiigations under the amployee benefit plans Within this framework, the company's ALM abjective 1s to malch assels to the

gratuity obhigations by investing with LIC =
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Details of the unfunded PRMB are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount
(Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
1 Reconcliliation of opening and closing bal: of d
a Opening defined benefit abligation . 81.02 53.59
& Interest cost 5.48 4.02
¢ Remeasurement (gains)/losses
(i) Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption (3.01) 357
(ii) Actuariat gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments {1.42) (2.29)
d Benefits paid {5.51) (3.42)
a Past service costs - 2555
Closing defined banefit obligation 76.56 81.02
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
2 Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
a. Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year - -
b. Present value of abligation as at the end of the year 76.56 81.02
¢ Amount recognised in the balance sheet
(i) Retirement benefit asset - current = =
(i) Retirement benefit asset - non current - -
(iii) Retirement benefit liability - current 7.37 7.70
(iv) Retirement benefit liability - non current 89.1% 7332
3 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
* As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
a.  Service cost
(1) Current service cost - -
(ii) Past service cost = =
b.  Net interest expense 5.48 418
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 5.48 418
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
¢ Actuarial gains and lasses arising from changes in financial assumption (3.01) -
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (1.42) (3.89)
Components of defined benefit costs racorded in other comprehensive income (4.43) (3.89)
Total 1.05 029
4 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuati were as foll
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
a  Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7 00%
b, Medical cost - % of annual entitiement utilised (per annum) 20.00% 20.00%
¢ Martality rate LIC Annuitants LIC Annuttants
(1996-98) Ultimate  (1996-98) Ultimate
5 Experience on actuarial gain/{loss) for benefit oblig 1s and plan
(Amaunt Rs. in lacs)
Particulars PRMB
Year ended Year ended Year ended Yaar ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Present value of DBO 76.56 81.02 53.59 54.64 50.86
Fair vaiue of plan assets - . . ¥ =
Funded status {Surpius / (Deficit)] (76.56) (8102) (53.59) (54.84) (50 86)
4.43 (1.28) 3.89 387 425

Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on
olan liabilities

Experience gain / (loss) adjustments an -
plan assets

& The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligatian reprasenting average duraton for active members is 3 years (31 March 2017_ _§ ;23}‘5'}-_ —
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7 Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensilivity analysis
below have been determined based on reasonably passible changes of the respective assumptions accurring at the end of the reparting period, while halding all

ather assumptions constant,

On PRMB
i) If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower), the defined benefit abligation would decrease by Rs. 6,32 lacs (increase by Rs. 5.47 lacs) [as at 31 March,

2017: decrease by Rs. 3.21 lacs (increase by Rs. 3.46 lacs)].

The sensitivity analysis pressnted above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is uniikely that the change in
assumptions would accur in isolation of ane another as some of the assumptions may be carrelated

Furthermors, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit abligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting periad, which is the same as that applied in caiculating the defined benefit abligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Additional information relating to employee benefits obligation:

The estimate of future salary increases take into account inflation, seniority, promation and ather relevant factors.
2. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Govemment securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

-

3. Expected rate of retum an plan assets is based an the average long term rate of retumn expected on investments of the Fund during the estimated term of the

obligations.
Net liabilities far pension, gratuities and post retirement medical benefits is disclosed in Note 14 under the heading "Post-employment defined benefits”

Expenses relating to gension and post retirement medical benefits are included in Employsa benefits expense under the heading Salaries and Wages including
Bonus in Note 24 whereas expenses for retiring gratuities are included under the Contribution to Fravident and Other Funds in Note 24.

o a

(d) Actuarial ptions for p d ab
Particulars Refer note below As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(i) Discount rate {(per annum) 1 7.50% 7 00%
3 8.00% 8.00%

(ii) Salary escalation rate (per annum)

Notes :

1 The discount rate is based an the prevailing market yields of Govemment securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.

2. The campensated absences plan is funded

3. The estimates of future salary increases caonsidered take into account the inflation, seniarity, promotion and other relevant factors.

Provident Fund - Ail employaes in the rolls of the Company receive provident fund benefits, which are administered by the Provident Fund Trust exempted under

(e)
saction 17(1)(a) of Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act 1952 set up by the Company Aggragate contributions along with inlerest theraon are paid at
ratiramant, death, incapacitation ar termination of empioyment. Bath the employeas and the Campany maks manthly contributions at specified percentage of the
employees’ salary to Provident Fund Trust. If the Board of Trusties is unable to pay interast at the rate dectared for Employees Provident Fund by the Govt. of India
under Para 60 of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 far the reasan that tha ratum on Investment is less or far any othar reason then the deficiency shall
be made good by the Company.
The Actuary has carried aut year-end actuarial valuation of plan's liabilities and interest rate guarantee aobligations as at the balance sheet date using Projected Unit
Credit Method and- Deterministic Approach as outlinad in the Guidance Mota 29 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of india Based on such valuation, there is na
future anticipated shartfall with regard to interest rate obligation of the Campany as at the Balance Sheet date Further during tha y2ar, the Company’s contribution of
Rs 193 68 lacs (31 March, 2017: Rs 194.84 lacs) to the Provident Fund Trust has been expensed under the ‘Contribution ta Provident and Other Funds' in Note 24.
Disclosures given hereunder are restricted to the information available as per the Actuary's Report,
As at| As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Discount rates 7.50% 7.00%
Expected yield an plan assets 8.75% 8.75%
Guaranteed Interest Rate 8.55% 8.60%
{f} Risk Exposure

Though its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed ta same risks, the mast significant of which are detailed below:

Discount Rate Risk
The Company is expased to the risk of fall In discount rate. A fall in discount rate will aventually increase the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby

increasing the value of the liability

Salary Growth Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salariss of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan

participants will increase the plan liability

Demographic Risk
In the valuation of the liability, certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Company is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual

experience eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the benefit cost.

lhfyl/
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35 Segment reporting

(a)

The Company has identified business segment as the primary segment. The Company is engaged in production of sponge iron and generation of power from waste heat.
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment parfarmance focuses on manufacture

of sponge iron and generation of power, reportable segments for financial statements in accordance with ind AS 108 "Operating Segment’. The Company's

activities/operations are primarily within India.

Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities inciude the respactive amounts identifiable to each of the segmgnlﬁ gnd also amounts
allocated on a reasonable basis, The expenses, which are not directly relatable to the business segment, are shown as unallocable. Assets and liabilities that cannot be

allocated between the segments are shown as unallocable assets and liabilitles respectively.

(b)

() Segment Disclosures

Particulars

Segment revenue
Sponge Iran
Power

Less: Inter segment transaction

Segment results
Spange Iron

Power

Unallocated income / (expenditure)
Profit Before Finance Cost and Tax

Less: Finance costs
Profit before tax
Less: Tax expenses
Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Segment assets and liabilities

Particulars

Segment assets
Sponge lron
Power
Unallocated

Segment liabilities
Sponge iron
Power
Unallocated

Name of customers who contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue:

Name of customer

Year ended
31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs

Year ended
31 March, 2017

76,123.17 56,512.98
7,243.08 6,464.50
(1,701.71) (1,461.41)
81,664.54 61,516.07
12,471.38 804.98
4,750.88 4,32017
4,120.74 3,466.53
21,343.00 8,591.68
324.67 244.40
21,018.33 8,347.28
6,932.62 2473.24
14,085.71 5,874.04
111.25 (136.15)
14,196.96 5,737.89
Rs. in lacs
As at As at

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

44,572.31 38,309.91
4,573.24 4,722,96
72,278.57 61,547.13
121,424.12 104,580.00
12,766.49 10,479.16
711.24 678.85
9,303.79 6,937.49
22,781.52 18,095.50
Year ended

Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Sponge Iron

K.D Iron & Steet Co.

Lhaki Steels & Rolling Pvt Ltd
Sponge Sales India Pvt Ltd
TATA Intemnational Ltd

Power
Tata Steef Ltd

’\{‘1/

Amount Amount
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
7,898.83 6,454.49
9,328.79 9,793.17
8,028.80 -
7,848.18
5,457.67 5,003.09

38,562.07 21.250.75
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Particulars

Additions to Non - Current assets

As at
31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs
As at

31 March, 2017

Sponge Iron §82.55 28.91
Power - -
Unailocated - -
682.55 28.91
Depr and amor n
Sponge Iron 989.34 1,031.10
Power 240.94 24521
Unallocated - -
1,230.28 1,276.31
36 Disclosure relating to provisions as per ind AS 37 - Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions for interast on income tax and others have been recognised in the financial statements considering the follawing:
(i} The Company has a present obligation as a result of past event
(i) Itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
(i) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Rs. in lacs
. Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Carrying amount as at beginning of the 2,512.77 2,723.89 601.00 601.00 1,589.31 1,587.00
year
Provision made during the year 25.98 240.78 - = 298.60 231
Amount paid during the year - 452.00 . - - =
Unused amaunt reversed during the year - - - - -
Carrying amount as at the end of the year 2,538.75 251277 601.00 601.00 1,887.91 1,589.31
Interest on income tax

Nature of obligation

VAT, entry tax and sales tax including interest
thereon

Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power
distribution companies

On decision by competent authority

Expected timing of resultant outflow

On decision by competent authority

On decision by competent authority

The above matters are under dispute with

Indication of uncertainty about those
outflows

The above matters are under dispute with
authorities

The above matters are under dispute with
authorities

authorities

Major assumptions conceming future
events

The matter is with higher authorilies for
adjudication. Provision has been made on the
grounds of prudence

The matter is with higher authorities for
adjudication. Provision has been made on
the grounds of prudence

' The matter is wilh higher authonties for
adjudication. Provision has been made on
the grounds of prudence

Amount of any expected reimbursement,
i.e., amount of any asset that has been
recognised for that expected
reimbursement

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

37 Assets hypothecated as Security

The carrying amount of inventories and trade receivables (Note 09 and Note 10 respectively) are hypothecated as Primary security and Property, plant and equipment (Note 03)
hypothecated as coilateral security for working capital requirements.

b
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38 OPERATING LEASES
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The Company has cancellable operating lease agreements for office spaces and residential accommodations, the tenure of which generally vary from less than a year to 3 years.
Terms of such lease include option for renewal on mutually agreed terms, Operating lease rental expenses aggregating Rs. 79.29 lacs (31 March, 2017: Rs. 76.49 lacs) have been

debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 31 March, 2018: Rs. 179.22 lacs (31 March, 2017: Rs. 218,70 lacs)

b. Amount spent during the year ended 31 March, 2018 (figures in brackets represents amount for the previous year)
Rs. in lacs
" Paid Yet to be Paid Total
St No. Particulars @A) (B) (A1B)
(0] Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
©) ) )
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 125.36 55.10 180.46
(166.96) (52.25) (219.21)
Total 125.36 55.10 180.46
(166.96) (52.25) (219.21)

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 on 28 March 2018. The rules among other key
amendments relate to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, Ind AS 40,
investment Property, and Ind AS 115, Revenue fram Contracts with Customers. These rules come into force from 1 April 2018. The company is evaluating the effect of the same with

respect to the changes in the GAAP.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company, except a sum of Rs. 4.28 lacs, which is
held in abeyance due to pending legal cases.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik

A M Misra
Chairman Managing Director
Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No. 057572
S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018

L



(1Y

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Tata Sponge Iron Limited

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Tata Sponge Iron
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™); (refer Note 44 to the attached consolidated Ind
AS financial statements), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared
based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial

Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

2.

3.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, consolidated cash flows and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the
Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records
including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder including the accounting standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Tata Sponge Iron Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Page 20f 3

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2018, and their
consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of consolidated profit and consolidated other
comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Other Matter

8.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 were
audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report
dated April 26, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion is
not qualified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary included in the Group including relevant records relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary.

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained by the Holding Company and its subsidiary included in the




Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Tata Sponge [ron Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Page 3of 3

(@

(e

®

(®)

Kolkata
April 17,2018

Group including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on April 1, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary respectively, none of the directors of the Group company is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending
litigations as at March 31, 2018 on the consolidated financial position of the Group -
Refer Note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2018.

ili. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary
company incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2018 except for
amounts aggregating to Rs 4.28 lakhs relating to the Holding Company, which
according to the information and explanations provided by management is held in
abeyance due to pending legal cases. (Refer Note 43 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements).

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Group for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009
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Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No.: 057572



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Tata Sponge Iron Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Tata Sponge Iron Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company its subsidiary company and ,its associate
company to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of
the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is applicable, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAT and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Tata Sponge Iron Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, and subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009

Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner
Membership No.: 057572
Kolkata
April 17, 2018



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018

Rs. in facs
As at As at
Notes 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(@) Property, plant and equipment 03 14,666.50 16,079.72
(b) Capltal work-in-progress 03 582.19 563.48
(c) Intanglble asseis 04 233.03 390.95
(d) Financial assets .
(i) Investments 05 7,171.68 80.00
(Il) Loans 06 16.29 19.71
(i) Other financial assets 07 6,412.84 1,020.11
(e) Non current tax assets (net) 19A 2,812.63 2,812.63
(f) Other non-current assets 08 17,478.59 17,471.43
Total non-current assets 49,372.75 37,438.03
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 09 8,400.87 4,907.66
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 05 12,800.83 26,255.33
(ll) Trade receivables 10 5,880.50 3,576.67
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 (i) 11,251.88 30,468.08
(iv) Other bank balances 11 (i) 30,911.33 207.57
(v) Loans 06 252.20 279.91
(vi) Other financial assets 07 929.29 72117
(c) Other current assets 08 1,628.34 734.49
Total current assets 72,063.24 67,150.88
Total assets 121,435.99 104,588.91
Equity and liabllitles
(1) Equity
(a) Equlty share capital 12 1,540.00 1,540.00
(b) Other equity 13 87,112.60 84,952.26
Total equity 98,662.60 86,492.26
(2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provislons - 14 1,168.89 1,281.39
(b) Deferred tax liabllities (net) 15 1,798.21 1.905.71
Total non-current liabilities 2,967.10 3,187.10
Current liabillties
(a) Financlal liabillties
(i) Trade payables 16 6,692.03 5,253.61
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 422.78 335.01
(b) Provisions 14 5,145.03 4,779.72
(c) Current tax liabillties (net) 19 5,390.33 3,234.86
(d) Other current liabilittes 17 2,166.12 1,308.35
Total current labilltles 19,816.29 14,909.55
Total liabilities 22,783.39 18,006.65
121,435.99 104,588.91

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to our report of even date
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For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors \\':-,-Q‘f-' v
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Firm Registration Number - 304026 E/E-300009 ‘\ al
Chartered Accountants e,

Pinaki Chowdhury A M Misra Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No. 057572
S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018



TATA SPONGE [RON LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2018

|  Revenue from operations
Il Other income
i Total income (1 + i)

IV Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stack in trade

Excise duty on sale of goods
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

V  Profit before tax (Il - IV)

Vi

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax
Total tax expense VI

VIl Profit for the year (V - VI)

VIl Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss

IX Total other comprehensive income

X Total comprehansive income for the year (Vii+VIil)
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive income for the
year)

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each) :
(1) Basic (in Rs.)
(2) Diluted (in Rs.)

X

Notes
20
21

22
23

27.1A

29

Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
81,664.54 61,516.07
4,308.36 3.707.29
85|970.90 65,223.38
50,058.31 36,968.26
(473.47) 324.91
1,647.81 5,785.30
4,180.44 4,630.97
324.87 244.40
1,230.28 1,276.31
7,982.29 7.642.93
64,960.33 56.873.08
21,020.57 8,350.28
7,099.00 2,669.00
{166.38) 195.76
6,932.62 247324
14,087.95 5.877.04
170.13 (208.21)
{58.88) 72.06
111.25 (136,15)
14,199.20 5,740.89
91.48 38.16
91.48 38.16

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to
our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartared Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury
Partner

Membership No. 057572

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A M Misra
Chairman

S K Mishra
Chief Financial Officer

Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik
Managing Director

Sanjay Kasture
Company Secretary




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2018
A) Equity share capital Notes Rs. in lacs
(a) As at 1 April, 2016
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 12 1540.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31 March, 2017

(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each) 1,540.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year a
As at 31 March, 2018

(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 1.540.00

B) Other equity Rs. in lacs
Items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
Other items of
A General Retained other Total
Particulars Notes reserves eamings  comprenensive
income
As at 1 April, 2016 13 77.000.00 4,170.97 (106.09) 81,064 88
Profit for the year - 5,877.04 - 5,877.04
Remeasurement gains / {losses) an defined benefit plans - - (208.21) (208.21)
Tax impact on other comprehensive
income (OCI) - - 72.06 72,06
Dividend paid during the year - (1,540.00) - (1,540.00)
Tax on dividend - (313.51) - (313.51)
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 13 77,000.00 8,194.50 (242.24) 84,952.26
Profit for the year - 14,087 .95 - 14,087.95
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans - - 170.13 170.13
Tax impact on other comprehensive income (OCl) - - {58.88) {58.88)
Dividend paid during the year - (1,694.00) - {1,694.00)
Tax on dividend - (344.86) - (344.86)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 13 77,000.00 20,243.59 {130.99) 97,112,860

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to our report of even date A
v

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors |
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009 ey azy
Chartered Accountants o, ok i

A M Misra Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik

Pinaki Chowdhury
Managing Director

Partner Chairman

Membership No 057572
S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 17 April, 2018
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 21,020.57 8,350.28

Adjustments for:

Deprecialion and amortisation expense 1,230.28 1,276.31
Amoartisation of lease hold Land 0.47 047
Dividend from current investments (1.126.62) (1.295.77)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit & Loss {4.48)
Changes in fair value of non - current financial assets at fair value through
profit and Lass {91.68) )
Dividend received from equity investments (74.48) {70.00)
Gain on sale of current investments - (3.81)
Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment 3.49 6.96
Interest income (2,762.56) (2,168.16)
Finance cost 324.67 244 40
Liabilities na longer required written back (0.29) (27.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes 18,519.38 6,313.29
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in inventories (3,501.21) (1,671.44)
(Increase) in Trade receivables {2,303.83) (63362)
(Increase) in Other current assets (893.85) (344 51)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans 27.711 (279.91)
Decraase in Other financial assets 155.90 250.50
(Increase) in Other non-current assets (5,395.94) (927.32)
Increase in Trade payables 1,438.42 1,183.44
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 46.78 (464.59)
Increase in Other-current liabilities 860.06 627.75
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions - current 210.77 (639.86)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions - non current (112.50) 594 80
Cash generated from operations 9,051.69 4,008.53
income taxes paid (4,943.53) (1.843.42)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,108.16 2,165.11
B. Cash flows from investing actlvities
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment (including capital advances) (680.98) (388.07)
Proceeds from dispaosal of property, plant and equipment 1.21 650
Payments to acquire current investments (42,761.62) (65,867.80)
Payments to acquire Non- current investments (7,000.00) -
Proceeds from disposal of current investments 56,220.60 68,074.30
Movement in fixed depaosits (30,684.00) -
Interest received 2,398.53 1,948 22
Dividend received from equity investments 74.48 70.00
Dividend received from current investments 1,126.62 1,295.77
Net cash generated /(used} in investing activities (21,305.16) 5,138.92
C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend paid {1,674.34) (1,531.61)
Tax on dividend paid (344.86) (313.51)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,019.20) (1,845.12)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents (19,216.20) 5,458,91
Cash and cash equival at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 11) 30,468.09 25,009.17
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11) 11,251.88 30,468,08

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026€/E-300009 >
Chartered Accountants o
—— o —
Pinaki Chowdhury A M Misra Sanjay Kumar Pattnaik
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Membership No 057572

S K Mishra Sanjay Kasture
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary

Place Kolkata
Date 17 Apnl 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Group Background

TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED ('TSIL' or 'the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in India with its registered office at
Joda, Odisha, India.

TSIL and its subsidiary company (The Group) have a presence across the manufacture of sponge iron and generation of power from
waste heat as detailed under segment information in Note 35 to the financial statements.

The company is a subsidiary of Tata Stee! Limited. The equity shares of the company are listed on two of the stock exchanges in India
i.e. NSE and BSE.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue with the resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors
on April 17, 2018.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1. Basis of preparation

A. Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

B. Historicat Cost Convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
i) certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
i) defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

C. Current versus Non-current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

ii) held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii)) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

i) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

i) it is incurred primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

2. Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Ind AS Financials Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and entities controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group:
= has power over the investee;

» is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

= has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

a4



The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:
« the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;
- potential voting rights held by the Group from other vote holders or other parties;
* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous sharehoider's
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date of the group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control, over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilites of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
atributable to the acquisition of the items, Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred

Degreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated
residual values, over their estimated useful lives in accordance with Schedule Il to the Act except in respect of the following
categories of the assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated

technological changes, elc.

Category of assets Useful life ==
Furniture and fixtures 5 years g
Vehicles 5 years
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Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the cost of that item
is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the other components of the item.

The useful lives, residual values and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are included in profit or loss within ‘Other Income'/‘Other Expenses’. Advances paid towards the
acquistion of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as ‘Capital Advances’ under
other non- current assets and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready to use are disclosed under ‘Capital Work-

in progress’.
Intangible assets

Railway sidings constructed
Railway sidings is included in the Balance Sheet as an intangible asset where it is clearly linked to long term economic

benefits for the Group. In this case it is measured at cost of construction and then amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Amortisation Method and Period

Railway sidings amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives i.e 5 years.

Software costs acquired

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. It has a finite useful life and are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs associated with
aintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of

implementation/system integration services, where applicable.
Amortisation Method and Period

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 5 years. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically
including at each financial year end.

Research and Development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on development that do not meet the specified criteria under Ind AS
38 on ‘Intangible Assets’ are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair vaiue less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating

units).
Leases

As A Lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classifed as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to

compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment loss, if any. Investments are tested for
impairment wherever event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
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value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and Other Financial Assets
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

® those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses is either recorded in the statement of profit and loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this depends on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this depends on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Group reclassifies the debt investments when and only when the business model for managing those

assets changes.
{ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The the Group classifies its debt instrument as amortised cost measurement
categories. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Eaulty Instruments

The Group subsequently measures ail equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in 'Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not
fair valued through profit or foss. The impairment methadology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Note 28 details how the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset is derecognised only when the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognised

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset



1.

Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(v) Dividend Recognition

Dividend is recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
(vi) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realised.

(vii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or
the counterparty

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

12. Employee Benefits

A

A.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as 'Provision for Employee Benefits' within ‘Current Provisions' in the Balance Sheet.

Post-employment Benefits
i) Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. These are included in ‘Retained
Earnings’ in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

i) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised
as expenses for the period in which the employee has rendered the service.

Other Long ~term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of
expected future benefits in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or loss.



The obligations are presented under ‘Provision for Employee Benefits' within ‘Current Provisions’ in the Balance Sheet
if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

13. Income Tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences, unused tax credits and to unused tax losses.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reparting period. Management periodically evaluates positions laken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.,

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax

liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused lax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences, tax credits and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

14. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases
and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Finished goods comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

15. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably

estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or a present abligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannot be made

16. Revenue recognition

b



17.

18.

19.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are
net of returns, discounts, rebates, goods and service taxes and amounts coflected on behalf of third parties, as

applicable.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical resuits, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

A. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer as per terms of the contract.

B. Sale of Power

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised based on the units as transmitted to buyer as per the terms of contract
with the customer.

C. Other Operating Revenue

Revenue from sale of coal fines, char and iron ore fines are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the products have passed to the buyer as per terms of contract

D. Interestincome

Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Foreign currency transactions and translation
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the
year - end exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
the year-end restatement are recognised in profit and loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within
‘Other Income'/'Other Expenses’. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to owners of the Group by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

Diluted Earnings per Share




Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and -
the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

20. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

21. Trade Payables

Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior ta the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period.

22. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments and has been identified as the Managing Director of the Group. Refer Note 35 for segment
information presented.

23. Rounding of amounts

24. Use

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs
(Rs. 00,000) as per the requirement of schedule 11, unless otherwise stated.

of estimates and critical accounting judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions, that impact the application of accounting palicies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods impacted.

This Note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each impacted line item in the consolidated financial
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Employee Benefits (Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation) - Refer 11 (B) (i) and (ii)

Post-employment benefits represents obligation that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project
benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over
the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions
made. The accounting requires the group to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of
compensation increase and future mortality rates. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on
the defined benefit obligations

Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plants and equipment - Refer Note 2

Management reviews its estimate of useful life of property, plant & equipment at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolesce that may
change the utility of property, plant & equipment

Contingencies - Refer Note 14

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Group. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such
matters. it is often difficult to predict the final outcomes. The cases and claims against the Group often raise difficult
and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexities. including but not limited
to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim. the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law



b

in the normal course of business, the Group consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related
to litigations. The Group accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not
determinable, the matter is disclosed.

Deferred Taxes Refer Note - Refer Note 12

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of
deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverability of the deferred tax benefit.
Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned
optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the C i Fi ial St
03 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Carrying amounts of:

Freehoid land 564.08 229 42
Freehold buildings 2,510.14 2,523.48
Plant and equipment 11,343.05 12,131 58
Fumiture and fixtures 12.85 1149
Office equipment 142.63 111 49
Vehicles 93.75 7226
Sub-total 14,666.50 15,079.72
Capital work-in-progress 562.19 563 48
Total 582.19 563.48
Rs. in lacs
Freehold Freehold Plant and Fumiture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipment and fixtures equipment
Cost/deemed cost
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 229 42 2,766.13 12,940.98 18.36 8737 80 20 16,132.46
Additions during the year - 25114 4149 003 65.77 3026 38869
Assets disposad / written off during the year . - 2.49 0.07 018 20,15 22.89
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 229.42 301727 12.979.98 1832 152.96 100.31 16,498.26
Additions during the year 334.66 167.57 19.41 12.87 82.82 46.82 654,15
Assets disposed / written off during the year - - 51.18 0.38 10.54 9.99 72.09
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 - 564,08 3,174.84 12,948.21 30.81 226.24 137.14 17,080.32
Rs. in lacs
Freenhald Freehold Plant and Fumiture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipment and fixlures equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April, 2016 - 280.47 1373 449 1333 712 319.14
Charge for the year - 21332 83590 234 28.23 2904 1,108.83
S:;remanon on assets disposed / written off during the R 3 123 : 009 811 943
Accumuiated depreciation as at 31 March, 2017 483.78 848 40 5.83 a147 28.05 1,418.54
Charge for the year . 170.99 805,61 11.51 49.81 24.83 1,062,867
)C[):;rematloﬂ an assets disposed / written off during the - -~ 48.85 0.38 8.67 9.49 67.39
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March, 2018 - 664.70 1,605.16 17.96 82.61 43.39 2,413.82
Rs. in lacs
Freehold Freehald Plant and Furniture Office Vehicles Total
land buildings equipment and fixtures equipment
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 27942 2.523.48 12,131.58 11.49 111.49 7226 15,079.72
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 564.08 2,510.14 11,343.05 12.85 142.63 93.75 14,666.50

Note :

As at
31 March, 2018

Rs. In lacs
As at
31 March, 2017

1 Ali the above property, plant and equipment are owned by the Company.
2 Refer Note 37 for information on property, plant and equipment hypothecated as collateral security by the Company

by




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Cc d Fi ial St N

04 Other intanglble assets

Rs. In lacs
Carrying amounts of: asist fsst
mving ’ 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Software costs acquired 9.56 -
Railway sidings Constructed 22347 390.95
Total intanglble assets 233.03 380.95
Rs. in lacs
Software costs Railway sidings Total intanglble
acquired constructed assets
Cost/deemed cost
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 0.61 72591 726.52
Additions during the year = . -
Assels disposed / written off during the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 0.61 725.91 726.52
Additlons during the year 9.69 - 9.69
Assets disposed / wrltten off during the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 10.30 725.91 736.21
Rs. in lacs
Software costs Railway sidings Total intangible
acquired constructed assets
Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April, 2016 0.61 167.48 168.09
Charge for the year - 167.48 16748
Amortisation of assets disposed / written off
during the year . = Z )
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 2017 0.61 334.98 335.57
Charge for the year 0.13 167.48 167.81
Amortisation of assets disposed / written off - 5
during the year )
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March, 201 0.74 502.44 503.18
Rs. in lacs
Software costs Railway sidings Total intangible
acquired constructed assets
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 - 390.95 380.95
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 9.56 223.47 233.03

04.1 The amortisation has been included under 'Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note
26)

b

¥ Chartered Accountants) @




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

05

05.1

06

07

As at 31 March, 2017

Investments As at 31 March, 2018
Amount Amount
Quantity " (Rs. in lacs) Quantlty (Rs. in lacs)
Investment in Body Corporate @
Jamipol Limited 800,000 80.00 800,000 80.00
Investments in Mutual fund #
1 IDFC Corporate bond Direct plan -Growth 16,950,014 2,028.97 - -
Rellance Fioating Rate Fund -Short Term Plan 7,220,347 2,029.42 - -
2 (Direct Growth Plan)
3 Reliance Short Term Fund - (Direct Growth Ptan) 9,004,856 3,033.29 - -
7,091.68 *
Total Non - current Investments 7,171.68 80.00
Current Investments
Invest tin liquid | funds #
1 TATA Money Market Fund - Plan A - Daily Dividend 383,789.97 3,843.72 323,600.14 3,240.91
Reinvestment
2 HDFC Liguid Fund- Regular Plan - Dally Dividend 662.29 6.65 297,600.51 3,034,99
Reinvestment
3 IDFC Cash Fund - Regular Plan - Daily Dividend
Reinvestment : y §7,463.19 6§75.58 363,308.59 3,637.02
4 Rellance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Daily 279,353.04 4,272.99 305,472.98 4,669.88
Dividend Reinvestment
5 SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Reguler Plan -Daily - - 49,943.31 501.06
Dividend Reinvestment
6 Axis Liquid - Regular plan - Daily Dividend
Relnve?;tment auare Y 116,735.37 1,168.47 376.475.16 3,767.16
7 ICICI Prudential Liquid - Regular plan- Dally
Dividend Reinvestment 768,035.04 769.17 2,482,909.11 248537
8 BSL Cash Plus - Dally Dividend Reinvestment 1,222,204.88 1,225.84 3,189,383.37 3,195.61
9 Sundaram Money Fund Fegular -Daily Dividend
Reinvestment 5,696,836.56 576.11 .
10 DSP Blackrock Liquidity Fund-Inst-Dally Dividend
Reinvestment 36,325.40 363.60 172,194.08 1,723.33
Total current investments 12,800.83 26,255.33
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 19,972.51 26,335.33
# Investments carried at Fair value through Profit and Loss 19,892.51 26,255,33
@ Investments carried at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 80.00 80.00
{also refer Note 28(c)]
Refer Note 28 for information about fair value measuerment, cradit risk and market risk on investments.
Rs. in lacs
Loans As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Non-current Current Mon-current Current
Loan to Employees 10.83 8.22 15.25 8.85
Security Deposits
Considered good 4.46 243.98 4.46 271.06
Considered doubffut . 22.57 - 2257
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits - (22.57) (22.57)
15.29 252.20 19.71 279.91
Rs. in lacs

Other financial assets

(a) Interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances
(b) Deposit with banks and others with maturity period more than

12 months

[Above deposits includes Rs. 2.02 lacs as at 31 March, 2018
(Rs. 2.22 lacs as at 31 March, 2017) pledged with government

authorities]

bl

As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

Non-current Current Non-current Current

157.10 929.29 1.20 72117
6,255.74 - 1,018.91 -

6,412.84 929.29 1,020.11 72117




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the C Idated F St
08  Other assets Rs. In lacs
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Non-current Current Non-current Current
(a) Capital advances 16,624.26 - 16,824 26 -
(b) Advances to related parties [Refer Note 33] - 60.98 - 20.00
(c) Other loans and advances
(i) Advances with public bodies 808.71 946.47 608.71 149 86
(i) Other advances and prepayments 19.29 830,42 1166 564.16
(ili) Prepaid lease payments
- Prepaid lease payments cost 42.42 0.47 4242 0.47
Less: Prepaid [ease payments amortisation {16.09) - (15.62) .
17,478.69 1,620.34 17,471.43 734.49
Rs.in tacs
09 (nventorles
- As at As at
(lower of cost and net realisable value) 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Raw malterials 6,850.03 3,854.26
(b) Finished goods 691.58 218.11
(c) Stores and spares 869.26 835.29
8,408.87 4,80788
Note:
a) Refer Nots 37 for information on inventories hypothecated as security by the Company
Rs. in lacs
10  Trade receivables As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Cuyrent
a) Unsecured, considered good 5,880.50 3.876.67
Total trade receivables 5,080.50 357667
Trade receivables 5,261.50 3,089.90
Recelvables from related parties (Refer Note 33) 629.00 48677
5,880.50 3,576.67
Nota:
a) Refer Note 28 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables.
b) Refer Note 37 for information on Trade Receivable hypothecated as security by the Company
Rs. In lacs
11 (i) Cash and cash equlvalents As at As at

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(a) Balances with scheduled banks

(1) In current accounts 3,639.91 231.38
(2) In demand deposlt accounts 7,711.28 30,235.31
{b) Cash an hand 0.68 139
Total Cash and cash eq as per St: t of Cash Flows 11,281.88 30,468.08

(ii) Other Bank balances
In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts @ 227.33 207 57
Fixed Deposit Accounts (with maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months) 30,684.00 -
30,911.33 207.57
@ Includes earmarked balances in unclaimed dividend accounts 227.33 207.57

(ili) Disclosure of specified bank Notes {SBNs)
The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) or other denomination Notes, as defined in the MCA notification G S.R. 308(E) dated 30 March,
2017, held and transacted during the period from 8 Novemnber, 2016 to 30 Dacember, 2016 is provided in the table below:

Other
SBNs* denominatlon Total
i (Rs.) Notes (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Closing cash in hand as on 8 November, 2016 122,500.00 37,607 .50 160,107 50
Add: Permitted receipts - 671,87200 671,872.00
Less: Permitted payments - (527,434 50) {527,434 50)
Less: Amount deposited in Banks (122,500.00) - (122,500.00)
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December, 2018 - 182,045.00 182,045,00

* For the purposes of this Note, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the nolification of the Govemment of
India, in the Ministry of Finance. Department of Economic Affairs number SO 3407(E), dated 8 November, 2016

{Ilv There are no repalialion restrictions with regard to Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the year ond of the current reporting period and pnar_____
v nerind

b (



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Cc | d Fi ial St

12 Equity share capital

(a) Authorised Share Capital:

Rs. In lacs
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

25,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2,500.00 2,500.00
(As at 31 March, 2017: 25,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
2,500.00 2,500.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up :
16,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,640.00 1,540.00
(As at 31 March, 2017: 15,400,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
1,540.00 1,540.00
(c) Fully paid equity shares
No. of equity Amount
shares Rs. in lacs
As at 1 April, 2016
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 15,400,000 1,540.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year . -
As at 31 March, 2017 15,400,000 1,540.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March, 2018
(15,400,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 15,400,000 1,540.00
(d) Shares held by holding Company
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
No. of equity o %
e % No. of equity shares
Fully paid equity shares
Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company) 8,393,654 54.50% 8,393,554 54.50%
8,393,554 54.50% 8,393,554 54.50%

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of outstanding shares
As at 31 March, 2018

As at 31 March, 2017

No.st:‘fac:::lty % No. of equity shares %
Fully paid equity shares :
8,393,664 54.50% 8,393,554 54.50%

Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company)

(f) Rights, preferences and restrictlons attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, In proportion to their

shareholding.

13 Other squity

General reserves

Retained eamings

Other items of other comprehensive income
Total

b

Rs. in lacs

As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

77,000.00 77,000.00

20,243.59 8,194.50
(130.99) (242.24)

§7,112.60 2 84,952.26




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Rs. in lacs
Items of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
income
Retained Other items of Total
Particulars General reserves etaine other
earnings comprehensive
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 77.000.00 4,170.97 (106.09) 81,064,988
Profit for the year - 5,877.04 . # 5877.04
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans . . (208.21) (208.21)
Tax impact on other comprehensive income (OCI) - - 72.08 72.06
Dividend paid during the year - (1,540.00) - (1,540.00)
Tax on dividend - (313.51) = (313.51)
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 77,000.00 8,194.50 (242.24) 84,952.26
Profit for the period - 14,087.95 = 14,087.95
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans - - 170.13 170.13
Tax impact an other comprehensive income (OC!) - - (58.88) (58.88)
Dividend paid during the year - {1,694.00) = {1,694.00)
Tax on dividend . (344.86) - (344.86)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 77,000.00 20,243.59 (130.99) 97,112.60
Rs.in lacs
As at 31 March, 2013 As at 31 March, 2017
14 Provisions Non current Current Non current Current
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Post-employment defined benefits 1,168.89 117.37 1,281.39 76.64
(b) Other provisions
i)  Provision for VAT, entry tax and sales tax - 2,538.75 - 2,512,77
iiy Provision for cross subsidy surcharge payable - 601.00 - 601.00
jii) Provision for interest on income tax - 1,887.91 - 1,589.31
Total provisions 1,168.89 5,145.03 1,281.39 4,779.72
15 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
The following is the analysis presented in the consolidated balance sheet:
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Deferred tax liabilities 3,087.66 3,257.06
Deferred tax assets {1,289.45) (1,351.35)
Deferred tax liabilities (net} 1,798.21 1,905.71
Rs. in lacs
Deferred tax Recognised in Recognised in Deferred tax
liability/ profit or loss other liability/
(asset) comprehensive (asset)
as at income as at
31 March, 2017 31 March , 2018
Deferred tax liabilities
(iy Property, plant and 3,257 .06 (169.40) - 3,087.66
equipment
3,257.06 (169.40) - 3,087.66
Deferred tax assets
(i) Provision for compensated
absences (153.20) (0.02) - (153.22)
(i) Remeasurement gain/ (loss) arising from
defined benefit plans (72.08) - 58.38 {13.18)
(i) Disallowances on paymenl basis (1,126.09) 3.04 . (1,123.05)
(1,351.35) 3.02 58.38 (1,289.45)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,905.71 (166.38) 58.88 1,798.21
Note :

1 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws

9




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financiaf its
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
18 * TradsTpavables 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Current
(iy Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises (Refer Note below) 176.10 16.35
(i) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(a) Trade payables for supplies and services 5,323.32 4,271.74
(b) Others
- Trade payables for accrued wages and salaries 1,192.61 965.52
Total Trade Payables 6,692.03 5,253.61
Trade payable 4,487.94 3,279.05
Trade payable to related parties 2,204.09 1,974.56
Total Trade Payables 6,692.03 5,253.61
Note:

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in lhe "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information availabie with the Company, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

Rs. in lacs
As at As at
31 Marchi, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of the period 176.10 16.35
{ii) Interest due thereon - &
(b) Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 and lhe amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day
(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment other than the interest - -
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2006
(d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - =
(e) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years for the purpose - -
of disallowance of a deductible expendilure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ’
Refer Note 28 for infarmation about credit risk and market risk on Trade paybies.
Rs. in lacs
I As at As at
17 Other current liabilities 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Advances from customers 110.61 666.11
(b) Other payahles
(iy Employee recoveries and employer coniributions 62.14 59.97
(i) Statutory liabilities (GST, Excise duty, service tax, sales tax, TDS, etc) 1,993.37 580.27
Total other current liabilities 2,166.12 1,306.35
Rs. in lacs
;ST As at As at
18 Other financial liabilities 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(a) Creditors for capital supplies and services 7262 71.05
(b) Other credit balances 122.83 56,34
(c) Unpaid dividends 227.33 20762
Total Other financial liabilities 422.78 335.01
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
19 Current tax liabilities (Net) 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 5,390.33 3,234.86
Total current tax liabilities 5,390.33 3,234 .86
Rs. in lacs
As at As at
19 A Non current tax assets 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Advance tax and Tax Deducted at Sources (net of provision) 2,812,63 281263
2,812.63 2,812.63

Total non current tax assets

=



TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial t:
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
20 Revenue from operations 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(a) Sale of sponge iron
(including excise duty Rs.1,647 81 lacs up to 30 June' 2017 75,516.55 56,344.27
Rs. 5,785,30 lacs for the year ended 31 March' 2017)

(b) Sale of power . 5,541.36 5,003.08

(c) Other operating revenue
-Sate of iron ore fines, coal fines, char and paving etc 606.63 168.72
Gross revenue from operations 81,664.54 61,516.07
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
21 Other income 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(a) Interestincome eamed on financial assets that are not
designated at fair vaiue through Profit or Loss

(i) Bank deposits (at amortised cost) 2,398.13 1,877.04

(ii) Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 364.42 20112
(b) Dividend income

(i) From equity investments 74.48 70.00

(i) From Investment in Mutual fund (current ) 1,126.62 1,295.77

(iiiYChanges in fair value of financial assets at fair value 448 _

through Profit & Loss (current) '

(iv) Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through Profit & Loss (Non - current) 91.68 =
(c) Liabilities no longer required written back 0.29 27.39
(d) Net gain on sale of current investments - 3.81
(e) Net gain on foreign currency lransactions 32.11 9.34
(f) Other non-operating income 214.15 132.82

Total other income 4,306.36 3,707.29
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Fi ial t

22 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases of materiais

Less: Closing stock
Total cost of materials consumed

Cost of materlals consumed comprises
(a) lron ore
(b) Coal
(c) Dolomite

Total cost of materials consumed

23 Changes in inventorles of finished goods

Finished goods

Opening stock

Less: Closing stock

Net (Increase) / decrease in finished goods

24 Employee beneflts expense

(a) Salaries and wages

{b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(see Note 34)

(c) Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expense

25 Finance costs

Interest expenses
interest on statutory dues

Total finance costs

e

Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3,854.26 1,835.48
63,062.08 38,987.04
§6,916.34 40,822.52
6,868.03 3,854.26
50,088.31 36,968.26
17,724.81 14,492.13
31,866.75 22,170.13
466.76 306.00
50,050.31 36,968.26
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

21811 543.02
691.58 218.11
(473.47) 324.91
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

3,425.09 3,929.29
398.52 386.07
356.83 315.61

4,180.44 4,630.97

Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

324.67

244.40

324.67

244 .40




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the C lidated Fi fal Sta

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

26 Depreciation and amort)

(a) Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment (Refer Note 03) 1,062.67 1,108.83
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 04) 167.61 167.48

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,230.28 1,276.31
27 Other expenses Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 1,032.29 990.45
(b) Fuel oil consumed 111.78 88.42
(c) Purchase of power 10.01 15.88
(d) Rent 79.29 76.49
(e) Repairs to buildings 378.67 400.78
(f Repairs to machinery 1,366.32 1,698.77
(@) Insurance 70.09 29.36
(h) Rates and taxes 996.79 526.54
() Freight and handling charges 698.56 670.68
() Commission, discounts and rebates 42.10 44.11
488.09 467,28

(k) Packing and forwarding

() Excise duty on change in finished goods (35.58) (28.49)
(m) Other expenses
(1) Legal and professional costs 660.66 660.01
(2) Adverlisement, promotion and selling expenses 33.18 40.33
(3) Travelling expenses 136.93 123.80
(4) Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 3.49 6.96
(5) Corporate social responsibility expenses 180.46 219.21
(6) Other general expenses (*) 1,730.13 1616.35
7,982.29 7.,642.93

Total other expenses

(*) Includes R & D expenses amounting to Rs. 11.40 lacs (31 March 2017 Rs.11.51 iacs) pald to Indlan
Institute of Technology , Bhubaneswar

27.1 Payments to auditors

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(1) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

() As auditors - statutory audit 11.04 12.30

(i) As auditors - quarterly audits 7.60 11.61

(ify As auditors - tax audit 2,02 2,02

(i) For other services - 5.09

(iil) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses 7.39 2,57
28.05 33.59




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED

Notes to the C lidated Fi ial S its
271A | tax recognised in S t of Proflt and Loss
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Current tax
On profit for current year 7,099.00 2,669.00
7,099.00 2,669.00
Deferred tax (Refer Note 15}
In respect of the current year (166.38) (195.76)
(166.38) (195.76)
Total tax expense (Refer reconcillation below) 6,932.62 2,473.24
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Rs. in lacs
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

Profit before tax 21,020.57 8,350.28
Income tax expense calcutated at enacted Income tax rate of 7,274,80 2,889.86
34.608% (2016-17 : 34.608%)

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (448.96) (471.88)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 106.67 5483
profit

Others 0.11 0.43
Income tax exp recognised in Stat 1t of Profit and

Loss 6,932.62 2,473.24

b
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Consoli Financial St:

28 (a) Financial Risk Management;

0]

(i)

The Group’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity fisk and markel risk. In order to safeguard against any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group,
derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward conlracts are entered where considered appropriate to hedge foreign currency risk exposures Derivatives
are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The Group's senior management oversees the management of abave nsks. The senior exaculives warking lo manage the financial risks are accountable to the Audit
committee and the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance (hat the Group's financial risks-taking activities are govemed by appropriate palicies and
procedures and that financial risks are idenlified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's palicies and the Group's risk appetite

This Note explains lhe sources of risk which the entity 1s exposed to and now the entity manages the risk. The Board of Directars reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below :

Credit risk management:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk
primarily arises from trade receivables, invesimenls in mutual funds and balances with banks.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured, considered good and are derived from revenue eared from customers. Customer credit risk is managed as per Group’s palicy

and pracedures which invalve credit approvals, establishing credit fimits and continually monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business QOutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and the shipmenls to customers are generally covered by letters of

credit or ather forms of credit assurance

Other Financial Assets

Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits, loans and investments is managed by Group's finance department. Invesiments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements The Group monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of ils counterparties

Financial Assets that are Nelther Past Due Nor

Nonehof t'he Group's cash equivalents with banks, loans and investments as at 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017 were past due or impaired Total trade receivables, of
Rs,5,980.50 lacs as at 31 March, 2018 and Rs. 3,576.67 lacs as at 31 March, 2017 consisted of customer balances that were neither past due nor impaired

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity nsk is the risk (hat the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses The Group's
objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and maintain
adequate source of financing. The Group generates sufficient cash flows from current operations which together wilh the available cash and cash equivalents and short-
term investments provide liquidity bath in the short-term as well as long-term

{a) Financing Arrangements

The Group has unutilised fund based arrangement with banks for Rs, 11,000 00 lacs (31 March, 2017- Rs 11,000.00 lacs) The Group has also Non-Fund based facilities
with banks for Rs.21,315.00 lacs (31 March 2017 Rs 31,315 00 lacs) which may be utilised at any time and the banks have a right to terminate the same without nolice

(b) Maturities of Financial Liabilities
The table below analyse the Group's financial liabilities inta relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contraclual undiscounted cash flows
Within 1 More than 1
Particulars year year

Rs.inlacs __ Rs.inlacs

As at 31 March, 2018
Trade payabies 6,692.03 -
Other financial liabilities - current 422,78

As at 31 March, 2017

Trade payables 525361 -

Other financial liabilities - current 33501 -

ber




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the C Fi St
(i) Market risk:
(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Group
transacts business in local cumrency and in feraign curmencies (primarily US Dollars). The Group has foraign currency trada pay and is theraf pased to foreign
currency risk. Foreign currancy risk axposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Group has not entared into any
derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices. )

(a) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

The Group does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss and equily to changes in the foreign exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments,

{iv) Securities Price risk:
The Group is exposed lo price risks arising from fair valuation of Group's investment in mutual funds. The carmrying amount of the Group's investments designated as at
fair value through profit or loss at lhe end of the reporting period (Refer Note no 5)

Rs. inlacs
Impact on Profit Before Tax
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
NAV -Increase by 1%* 198.93 262.55
(198.93) (262.55)

NAV -Decrease by 1%*

* Holding all other variables constant
Commodity Price Risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Group's purchase of imported coal for production of finished goods. Cost of raw
matarials forms the largest partion of the Group's cost pf sales. Market forces generally determine prices for the coal purchased by the Group. These prices may ba
influsncad by factors such as supply and demand, production costs and global and reglanal econamic conditions and growth Adverse changas in any of thesa factors
may impact the results of the Group

(v,

Commodity price risk exposura is evaluated and managed through operating procadures and sourcing pelicies. The Group has nat entered into any derivative contracts to
hedge exposurs to fluctuations in commadity prices

(b) Capitai Management:

(1) Risk Management
The shjective of the Group's capital management is to maximise sharehalder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Group. The Group
determines the capital requirement based on annual operaling plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through
operating cash flows generated and the Group does not have any borrowings. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

(ii) Dividends on Equity Shares
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Dividend Declared and Paid during the year

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2017 of Rs. 11 (31 March, 2016 — Rs. 10) per fully 11.00 10.00
paid share (Rs. Per Share)
Dividend Distribution Tax on above 31 March, 2017 of Rs. 224 (31 March, 2016 —Rs 2.04) 224 204
per fully paid share (Rs. Per Share)
osed Dividen I he End of the Reporti e
In addition to the above dividend, since year end the directors have recommended the payment 20.00
of a final dividend of Rs. 20 per fully paid share. This proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general mesting.
Dividend Oistribution Tax on above (Rs. Per Share) 4.1
{c) Financial Instruments by Category

Financial assets and liabilities
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2018 is as follows:

Rs. in lacs

. Fair value
Fair value
through profit or through other Amortised cost Total carrying value
loss comprehensive
income

Assets:
Investments in Mutual fund 19,892.50 - - 19,892.50
Investment in Body Corporate - 80.00 - 80.00
Trade receivables - 5,880.50 5.880.50
Cash and cash equivalents 11,251.88 11,251.88
Other Bank balances - - 30,911 33 30,911.33
Other financial assets - nan-current - - 6412 84 6412 84
Cther financial assets - curent - - 929.29 929.29
Total 19.892.50 80.00 55,385.84 75,358.34
Liabilities:
Trade navables - 6692 03 6692 03
Other financial liabilities - current - - 422.78 422.78
Total - 7.114 81 7.114.81
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TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the C Ildated Fi ial Stat

Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March, 2017 is as follows:

Rs. in lacs
] Fair value Amartised cost Total carrying value
o aiue through other
through profit or N
loss com_prehensnve
income

Assets:
Investments in Mutual fund 26,2556.33 - - 26,255.33
Investment in Body Corporate - 80.00 - 80.00
Trade receivables - - 3,576.67 3.576.67
Cash and cash equivalents - - 30,468.08 30,468.08
Olher Bark balances - - 207 57 207.57
Other financial assets - non-current - - 1,020 11 1,020 11
Other financial assets - current - - 721.17 72117
Total 26,255.33 80.00 35,863 60 £2,328.93
Liabilities:
Trade payables - 5,253.61 5,253.61
Other financial liabilities - current - - 335.01 335.01
Total - 5,588 62 5,5688.62

Fair value measurement:

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are cansistent with those used for the year ended 31

March, 2017

(a) In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund unils in the published statements. Net
asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors
Accordingly, such net assel valugs are analogous to fair market value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such
prices between investors and the issuers of these units of mutual funds

(b) The management assessed that fair values of, Current Investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets
{current), lrade payables, and other financial liabilities (current), approximate to their camying amounts due ta the short-term maturities of these instruments

Fair Value Hierarchy

This saction explains the judgements arid estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value
and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which farr values are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliabiiity of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classifed its financial instruments int three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each

level follows below

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quated prices This includes mutual funds. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Net
Asset Value

Level 2: The fair value of Financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counler derivalives) is determined using valuatior
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litte as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs requirad to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on abservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3 Thisis the case for unlisted equity securities
included in tevel 3

The Group's palicy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars As at Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year Valuation techniques
31 March, 2018 using
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Investment in mutual funds 19,892.50 19,892.50 - - | |Based on the declared
NIY;

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI (Unquoted) 80.00 - - 80.00 | |Shares in  the investee
company 1s unlisted and lhere
are certain restriclions on
disinvestmenl of such shares
by lhe Comapany as this is a
straregic investment Further,
there is a wide range of
possible fair value
measurements and the
management on a prudenl
basis has considered to keep
the investmenl at cost as the
best represeniation of fair|

Total financial assets 19.972.50 19,862 50 - 80.00

(Rs, in lacs)
Parliculars As at Fair value measurement at and of the reporling year uting Walualian techniques
31 March, 2017
Level 1 ] Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets i

Investment n mutual funds 2625533 2625533 | . Same as above

Investment in equity instruments at FYTOCI (Unquoted) 80.00 ol 80.00 | |Same as above

| Total financial assets 265.335 33 2525533 || 80 00

b




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Fir ial

29 Earnings per share Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Net profit for the year (Rs. In lacs) 14,087.95 5,877.04

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 15,400,000 15,400,000

Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) 10 10

Basic and diluted eamings per share (Rs.) 91.48 38.16

Note: The Group did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the period presented.

30 Contingent liabilities Rs. in lacs
As at As at

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

31 (a)

(b)

32 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for :Rs. 156.95 lacs (As at 31 March, 2017 Rs. 152,49 lacs)
advances Rs. 0.31 lacs (As at 31 March, 2017 Rs 19 06 lacs ) S s

o

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts;

(a) Income tax 159.28 154.04
(b) Odisha entry tax 2,579.93 2,579.93
(c) Customs duty (Refer Note beiow) 3,818.44 3,818.44
(d) Demand from Ministry of Coal against Radhikapur coal block [Refer Note 31] 3,250.00 3,250.00
(e) Demand from suppliers 152.13 152.13

9,959.78 9,954.54

Note:

The above includes demanid receivid from Commissioner of Customs (Praventive) aggregating to Rs. 4,398.99 lacs pertaining to the financial year 201 2-13
on aceount of levy of addilional customs duty on ctassification of the imported coal as bituminous coal as against Group's classification as steam coal. During
the year, the Group has filed an appeal against the aforesaid order in the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Kolkata, The Group had paid
an amount of Rs. 1,087.94 lacs and recognised the non-cenvatable portion of the duty and applicable interest as expense whereas cenvatable portion had
been recognised as an advance in the year 2012-13.

Rs. in lacs

Other money for which the Group is contingently liable As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(i) Renewable energy purchase obligation 632.89 632.89
(i) Excise Duty 2472.85 2,349.68
3,106.74 2,982.55

In respect of above, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows,is any, pending resolution of the respective pracedings. The
Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above

Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power distribution companies

in 2012-13, the Group injected power to State Grid due to denial of permission for open access by Orissa Powar Transmission Corporalion Limiled (*OPTCL")
to supply power to the parent Group Tata Steel Limited beyond the period of invocation of section 11 of Eleciricity Act, 2003 by the Govemment of Odisha ie.,
June, 2012, As a resull of which the Group could not meet the minimum stipulated critera of 51% self-consumption of generaled power as a captive power
plant and the provisions of Cross Subsidy Surcharge under Electricity Act, 2003 became applicable. The Group filed a case before the Odisha Electricity
Regulatory Commission ("OERC") for relief which was granted and consequently the Group has filed a case before Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("ATE"),
which is pending for adjudication, As a matter of prudence, an amount of Rs. 801.00 lacs had been provided in the year ended 31 March, 2015,

The Graup had fited a wril petition before the High Court of Orissa for sales tax examption for a period of two years w.e.f. June 10, 1997 as a Pioneer Unit.
The High Court initially ruled that the Group should pay the sales tax under dispute pending disposal of the writ petition. Accordingly, Ihe Graup paid sales tax,
which had riot baen collected from customers, and amounts aggregating to Rs. 573.73 lacs had been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the

years 1997-98 to 1998-2000.

The High Court directed the Sales Tax Authorities fo refund the amount after ascertaining that the said refund shall not unjustly enrich the Group. The Sales
Tax Officer passed the order staling that the refund shall unjustly enrich the Group against which the Group has filed a writ petition in the High Court
challenging the corraciness of the assessment and the same is pending. Pending finalisation of the malter no adjustments have been made in Ihe finangial
statements.

As per Industnal Policy Resolution 1992 of G t of Odisha, the Group has to pay a minimum sales lax of Rs. 252.56 lacs before availing exemption
from sales tax on incremental sale of Sponge Iron from Kiln 1 and 2. The Group had paid the above amount uniil the rate of sales lax was reduced. With
raduction in rate of sales lax, the Group considered that the above fimit of Rs. 252 56 lacs had lo correspondingly reduce and accordingly made reduced
payment. The Group however had provided the differential amount of Rs. 513.83 lacs upto the date of availing the benefit i.e., upte 31 March, 2012. The
Group had started collacting sales tax on sale of sponge iron produced in those kilns w.e.f. 1 April, 2012 and deposiling the same with Sales Tax Authorities
after availing set off of applicable input tax credit

In the month of November 2012, Ministry of Coal (*MeC") issued notices to the Group for invocation of bank guarantee of Rs. 3,250 tacs submitted towards
perfarmance of canditions for allocation of coal block against which the Group had filed a writ petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, which directed the
Group o keap the bank guarantee valid 1l 30 November, 2015 by which date (he MoC was directed lo lake decision. Meanwhile, the bank guarantee expired
and had not been renewed, since no communication had been received from MoC. Subsequently, MoC issued a notice dated 28 December, 2015, stating lhat
the bank guarantee be invoked and the aforesaid amount be deposited. Cansequent lo MeC's notice, the Graup has moved to the Hon'ble High Caurt of Dethi,
where the matter is pending adjudication. The Group has been advised and has obtained a legal opinitn Ihat as the original allocation has been declared
illegal and cancelled by the Hon'ble Supreme Court, the bank guarantee pertaining to such allocation (which is non-est and void ab initio) shall consequently be
deemed to be invalid and void ab initio. Pending finalisation of the matter, the amount conlinues to be disclosed as a contingent fiability.

(i) During pendency of the aforesaid matters in Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 24 September, 2014
has cancelled allocation of 214 coal blacks including the Radhikapur (East) Coal Block which was allotted to the Group on 7 February, 2008. The amount
incurred on the Radhikapur (East) Coal Block upto 31 March, 2018 aggregates to Rs. 18,040.96 lacs (31 March, 2017° Rs. 18,040.96 lacs)

(iiy Pursuant to the judgment of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, the Government of India has promulgated Coal Mines (Special Provision) Rules, 2014
("Rules”) for allocation of the coal mines through auction and matters related thereto. In terms of the said Rules, the successful bidder will be called upon
to pay to the prior allocattee the expenses incurred by the prior allocattee towards land and mine infrastructure. Pursuant to the judgement dated 9@
March,2017 of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi in W.P (c) 973/2015, the nominated Authority MoC vide its letter dated 1 February, 2018, the Group has
furnished the required statement of expenses and other details in the prescribed formal on 22 February, 201 8. Relying on the legal position and legal
opinion obtained by the Group in respect of the recoverability of the amount, no provision Is considered necessary

Net of
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33. Related party transaction
{A) Related Parties

Name of Related Party

Relationship

Where Control exists:

Tata Sons Limiled

Company having significant
Influence - Ultimate Conlrolling
Party (UCP)

Tata Steel Limiled

Holding Company

Others with whom transactlons have taken
place during the year

Tha Tinplate Company of India Limited

Tata Pigments Limited

The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Tata Metafiks Limited

'TM Internalional Logistics Limited

Mijunction Services Limited

Joint venture wilth TATA Stesl

Jamipo! Limited

Limited

Tata Bluescope Steel Limiled

Tala International Limited

Tata Internalional Singapore PTE Limited

Subsidiary of TATA Sons Limited

TC Travel & Services Limited

TRL Krosaki Refractories Limiled

Associate of TATA Steel Limiled

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Patlnaik
{Executive director upto 31 October, 2016
Managing Direclor w.e.f. 1 November, 2016)

Key Manangement personnel -
Executive Director (MD)

Mr. D P Deshpande (Managing Director upto
31.10.16)

Key Manangement personnel -
Executive Direclor (MD)

Mr. D K Banerjee, Mr. P. C. Parakh, Mr Manoj
T. Thomas, Mr. Krishnava S. Dutt, Mr. R
Ranganalh, Mrs. Meena Lall

Key Manangement personriel -Non-
Executive Director (NED)

Tala Sponge Iron Limited Employee Provident
Fund Trust

Posl Employment Benefit Plans

Tata Sponge lron Limited Superannuation

(PEBP) as per Ind AS 24

Tala Spongs Iron Limited Gratuity Fund

Rs. in lacs
(B) Particulars of transactions during the year
Sale of goods Purchase of goods Dividend income Dividend paid

q Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Partieulars 31 March, 2018 |31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 | 31 March, 2017 | 31 March, 2018 |31 March, 2017| 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Holding Company
Tata Steel Limited 311.77 35.84 18,006.49 14,252 45 = 923.29 839.36
Total 311.77 35.84 16,006.49 14,252.45 = 923.29 839.36
Fellow subsidiary
The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited - . 313 5.49 - - -
Tata Metaliks Limiled 198.37 19.12
Tata Pigments Limited - = = 1.13 - - - -
Total 198.37 19.12 3.13 6.62 - = = H
Associate of Tata Steel
TRL Krosaki Refractories Limited 57.68 - = = =
Total - - 57.68 - - - H -
Joint venture of Tata Stee)
Jamipol Limited . - - - 74.48 7000 - -
Tala Bluescope Steel Limited - - 56,67 - - N = -
Total - 56.67 E 74.48 $ -
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Limited
Tata Intemational Limited 8,605.84 423412 2,227.43 2,148.44 - ] - -
Tata Inlemalional Singapore PTE Limited - - 20,239.97 12,788.41 - - - -
Total 8,605.84 423412 22,487.40 14,936.85 - Ll L]

{.-

arterad Accol
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Sale of power Serv tvad t of expenses
Particulars Year ended V;:;;r::'d Year ended Year ended Year ended Y;a;:a::::j
B 31 March, 2018 2017 31 March, 2018 | 31 March, 2017 | 31 March, 2018 2017
Company having significant influence
Tata Sons Limited 214.55 159.15
Total - - 214.55 159.15 - &
Holding Company
Tata Stesl Limited 5,512.26 4,986 45 40.29 30.69 = &
Total 5.512.26 4,988.45 40.29 30.69 - -
Fellow subsidiary
TM Intemational Logistics Limited 713.22 689.64 619.90 605 46
The Tinplate Company of India Limited - . 0.03 003 - -
Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company - - - 004 - -
Limited
Total - - 713.25 689.71 619.90 605.46
Joint Venture of Tata Stael
Mijunction Services Limited - - 2.36 - b
| Total - . 2,38 - = -
diary of Tata Sons Limited
Tata International Limited - - - 666.75 600,48
Tata Intemational Singapore PTE Limiled - - - - 208.90 6.94
TC Travel & Services Limited - - 33.68 2510 34.77 28.99
Tala Consultancy Services Limited - - - 35.69 = .
Total - = 33.68 60.79 910.42 636.41
,,_ ~Year ended |
p of key Year ended 31 March
(c) |personnel 31 March, 2018 S '
MD
Remuneration
-Short term Employee Benefils 176.12 27904
-Post Employment Benefits 25.65 149.12
Total 201.77 428.16
NED
Silting Fees
Mr. A M Misra 23 25
Mr D K Banerjee 2,85 32
Mr Manoj T Thomas 27 29
Mr. P C Parakh 31 29
Dr. Omkar N Mohanty 3.3 31
Mr. Krishnava S Dutt 1.15 185
Commission
Mr A M Misra 7.83 77
Mr. D K Banerjee 5.65 582
Mr P C Parekh 8.70 6.95
Mr. Manoj T Thomas 6,09 613
DOr Omkar N Maohanty 6,52 511
Mr. Krishnava S Dutt 2.61 311
Total 52.8 51.28
(D) |Contribution to PEBP - to be deleted
Tata Sponge Iron Limited Employee Provident 193.68 194 83
Fund Trust
Tata Sponge Iron Limiled Superannualion 107 69 10817
Fund
Tata Sponge Iron Limiled Gratuity Fund 97.14 83.06
Total 398.51 386.06
{E) Balances Outstanding
Trade receivables Trade payables Advances Iy
Particulars As at March 31, | As al March As at March | As at March 31, | As at March | As at March As at March | As at March 31
2018 31,2017 31, 2018 2017 31, 2018 31, 2017 31, 2018 2017
Company having significant influence
Tata Sons Limiled - - 189.21 13577 - - . N
Holding Company
Tala Sleel Limited 585.57 48877 1,989.19 1.391.15 - - - .
Fellow subsidiary
TM international Logistics Limited - - 50.98 20.00 .
Tata Metaliks Limited 43.43 - % - = . - .
The Tinplate Company of India Limited - - 0.01 . - e - -
The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited - . 0.83 1.06 - = - -
Joint venture of Tata Steel
Tata Bluescope Steel Limited - . 23,16 + - z - -
Jamipol Limited - - - . - v 80.00 8000
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Limited
Tata International Limited - 41137 . ¥ - -
TC Travel & Services Limited - - 1.69 264 . ¥ B -
Tala Consuitancy Services Limiled 32.57 - =
Total 629.00 48677 2,204.09 1,974.56 50.98 2000 80.00 80 00
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March ]
2018 31,2017 |
MD | e
Olher Current Liabililies 6.23 514 |
[WED | :
| Other Current Liabilities | (
Mr_A M Misra 7.83 771)
Mr D K Banerjee { 5.65 582] ~J
Mr_Mano) T Thomas i 870 5 35 = v
| Mr_P C Parakh i .09 513] 5
Sr_Omkar N Mohanly I 5,52 511
Mr_4nahrava 5 Dull 261 30
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34 Employee benefits

(@ Superannuation

Rs. in lacs

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Contribution to superannuation fund 107.69 108.17
107.69 108.17

(b) Post Retirement Gratuity and Ex-MD Pension

Description of plan characteristics and associated risks

Gratuity liability arises on retirement, resignation, and death of an employes, The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of 15 days salary (i.e. last drawn salary
plus deamess allowance) upto 30 years of service and beyand 30 years of service, the liability is calculated on the basis of one month salary for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months. Vesting occurs upan completion of 5 years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obiigation and the related current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date

The Scheme is funded by way of a separate irrevocabie Trust and the Group is expected to make regular contributions to the Trust. The fund is managed by an
insurance Company and the assets are invested in their conventional group gratuity product The fund provides a capital guarantee of the balance accumulated and
declares interest periodically that is cradited to the fund account. The Trust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in nature and we do not expect
any significant liquidity risks. The Trust is responsible for investment of assets of the Trust as well as day to day administration of the scheme

The gratuity plan typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, langevity risk and salary risk.

1 Interest risk : A decrease in the Indian government bond yield rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability
2 Salary risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in
the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants fram the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of abligation will have a bearing on
the plan's liability
In respect of the plans in India, the most racent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31
March, 2018 by Mr. Ritobrata Sarkar, Fellow, Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of defined benefit obligation, and the refated current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method

The Board of Directors of the Graup granls approval for provisions of special retirement benefits to Managing Directors . The retirement benefit incudes indexed manthly
pension which is reviewed in every three years and medical benefits. The benefits in short are calied as ExMD pension and Post Retirement Medical Benefit(PRMB).Both
the benefit schemes are available to the spouses of concem MDs

The said benefits are not contractual obligation of the Group. The provisions of the above benefits can only be given after signing the agreement containing the no-
compete clause. The liabity are not funded by the Group and disclosed as defined benefit pian

Details of the funded gratuity and unfunded post reti pension are as foll
Year ended 31 March, 2018 Year ended 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Gratuily Ex- MD
Pension Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs.in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
1 Raconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation
a. Opening defined benefit obligation 1,783.95 1,277.01 1,533.44 687.98
b. Current service cost 97.14 - 86.52 -
c. Interest cost 119.78 86.79 111.51 50,96
d. Remeasurement (gains)/losses
(i) Actuarial gains and I0§ses arising from changes in 6.41 . ) 67 41
demographic assumption
{ii) Actuaria! gains and losses arising from changes in financial (50.12) (63.63) 73.09 :
assumption
(iii) Actuarial gain§ and losses arising from changes in (35.96) (55.82) 120.39 (44.58)
experience adjustments
e. Benefits paid (145.58) (74.42) (189.34) {60.74)
f. Past service costs - - = 57598
g. Acquisition cost 3.18 - 48,33 -
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,778.80 1,169.93 1,783.94 1,277.01
2 Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
a. Opening fair value of plan assets 1,783.94 - 157817 -
b. Interest income 119.78 - 114,97 -
¢. Remeasurement gains/(losses)
(i) Relurn on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net (33.40) : 9.38 )
interest expense)
d. Contributions from the employer 25.19 - 222.43 -
e Benefits paid (145.58) - (189.34) -
f. Acquisition cost 3.18 - 48.33 -
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 1,753.11 = 1.783.94 . -

et
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As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
. Ex - MD . Ex - MD
tuit;
Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension
Amount Amount Amaunt Amount
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs_in lacs)
3 Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
a Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 1,753.11 - 1,783.94 -
b Present value of fundedfunfunded defined benefit abligation as at 1,778.80 1,169.93 178394 1,277.01

the end of the year
[ Amount recognised in the balance sheet
(i) Retirement benefit asset - Current
(i) Retirement benefit asset - Non current
(ii) Retirement benefit liability - Current 25.69
(iv) Retirement benefit iiability - Non current -

70.23 - 68,94
1,099.70 - 1,208.07

4 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

)]

(-]

b

Year ended 31 March, 2018 Year ended 31 March, 2017
Ex -MD Ex - MD
Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
a, Service cost
(i) Current service cost 97.14 - 86.52 -
(iiy Past service cost - - - 575,98
b. Net interest expense - 86.79 {3.48) 50.96
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or 97.14 86.79 83.06 626.94
loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
c The return on plan assets (excluding amaunts included in net
interest expense) 33.40 - (9.38) -
d Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic
assumption 6.41 .. = 6741
e Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial
assumption {50.12) (63.63) 73.09 -
f. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes i erien:
adjus‘mengts ©s anising from changes in experience (35.96) (55.82) 120 39 (44.58)
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive
income (46.27) {119.45) 184.10 2283
Total of defined costs 50.87 {32.66) 267.16 649.77

The current service cost, past service cost and the net interest expenss for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income

The plan assets of the Group relating to Gratuity are managed through a trust are invested through Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). The details of investments relating to
these assets are not shown by LIC. Hence, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount that each major category constitutes to the
fair value of the total plan assets has not been disclosed,

Category of Plan Assetls: in% in %
Funded with LIC 100% 100%
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuily Ex - MD Pension
a Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.50% 7 00% 7.00%
b Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 8.00% 6.00% 800% 6.00%
[ Estimated rate of return an plan asset (per annum) 7.50% NA 9.10% NA
d Mortalily rate Indian As_sured Lives LIC (1996-98) Indian A_ssured Lives LIC (1996-98)
Mortality (2006-08) 1 ieants ultimate Mortality (2006-08) 0 jants uitimate
modified ultimate modified ultimate
e Withdrawal rate
- Ages from 20-25 5%
3%

- Ages from 25-30
R T ER) 1.00% Refer Note below 2% Refer Note below
- Ages from 35-50 1%
- Ages from 50-55 2%
- Ages from 55-58 3%
Note
In respect of Ex - MD Pension. the effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by constructing a Multiple Decrement Table taking into account the above

mortality table
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7 Duration As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation (Active Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuity Ex - MD Pension
members)

Number of years 7 1 6 8
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Pension Gratuity £x - MD Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
(Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Within 1 year 145.39 72.81 163.55 71.31
1-2 year 412.69 148.15 369.08 146.91
2-5 years 1163.23 378.64 1,202.11 402.01
2383.62 1096.87 2,397 95 939.99

Qver 5 years

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

8
As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
Gratuity Ex - MD Pansion Gratuity Ex - MD Pension
Amount Amount Amount Amount
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Present value of defined benafit abligation 1,778.80 1,169.93 1,783.94 1,277.01
Fair value of plan assets 1,753.11 - 1,783.94 -
Funded status (25.69) {1,169.93}) - {1,277.01)
Expected contribution (best estimate) to funded plans in subsequent
25.69 NA 163.55 NA

financial year

Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality The sensitivity analysis below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions accurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other

assumptions constant
a) On post retirement gratuity plan
i) If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower), the dsfined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs.104.19 lacs (increase by Rs. 9258 lacs) [as at 31
March, 2017: decrease by Rs. 96.08 lacs (increase by Rs. 108 21lacs)].
iiy If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis paints, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 102.96 lacs (decrease by Rs
93 23 lacs) [as at 31 March, 2017. increase by Rs, 106.16 lacs (decrease by Rs. 96.13 lacs)]

b)  On post retirement pension plan
i) If the discount rale is 100 basis points higher/(lower), the defined benefit abligation would decrease by Rs. 135.73 lacs (increase by Rs. 113.35 lacs) {as at 31
March, 2017: decrease by Rs. 69.98 lacs (increase by Rs. 77.01 lacs)]
ii) If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 136.78 lacs (decrease by Rs
116.07 lacs) [as at 31 March, 2017: increase by Rs. 77.39 lacs (decrease by Rs. 70.92 lacs)].
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit abligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would accur in isolation of ane another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet

C) Experience on actuarial gain/(loss) for benefit obligations and plan assets:

{Amount Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Gratuity

Year ended Year anded Year ended Year ended Year andad

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31,03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Present value of DBO 1,778.80 1,783.94 1,533.44 1,356.52 1,053.91
Fair value of plan assets 1,753.11 1,783.94 157817 1,356.52 1,093.98
Funded status [Surpius / (Deficit)] (25.69) 44,73 E 40.07
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on (79.67) 193,48 730 (62.91) (29.12)
plan liabilities
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on {33.40) 9.38 1138 21 2.57
plan assels

£
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Experience on actuarial gain/(loss) for benefit g and plan
(Amount Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Ex-MD Pensi
Year ended Year anded Year ended Year anded Year anded
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Present value of DBO q 1,169.93 1,277 01 687 98 519.93 462.80
Fair value of plan assets - - - - -
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] (1,169.93) (1,277 01) (687 98) (519.93) (462.80)
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on {119.44) 22.83 17021 (6.67) (8 18)

plan liabilities

Experience gain / (lass) adjustments on -
plan assets

The Group ensures that the investment positions are managed wilhin an asset liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long term
investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Group's ALM abjctive is to match assets to the gratuity

obligations by investing with LIC.

{c) Details of the unfunded PRMB are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of obligation
a Opening defined benefit obligation 81.02 8359
k Interest cost 5.48 4.02
¢ Remeasurement (gains)/losses
(i) Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption {3.01) 3.57
(i) Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments {1.42) (2.29)
d Benefits paid {5.51) (3.42)
e Past service costs - 2555
Closling defined beneflt obligation 76.56 8102
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Recongillation of fair value of assets and obligations
a. Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year - 3
b Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 76.56 81.02
¢ Amount recognised in the balance sheet
(i) Retirement benefit asset - current - -
(ii) Relirement benefit asset - non current 3 =
(iii) Retirament benefit liability - current 7.37 770
(iv) Retiremant benefit liability - non current 69.19 7332
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Proflt and Loss In respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
PRMB
Amount Amount

(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
a.  Service cost
(i) Current service cost
(ii) Past service cost

b  Netinterest expense 5.48 4.18

Components of deﬁnefi benefit costs recognised in proflt or loss 5.48 418

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

¢ Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption (3.01) -

d  Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments {1.42) (3.89)

Components of defined benefit costs recorded in other comprehensive income {4.43) (3.89)
1.08 029

Total
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4 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuati were as foll
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.00%
b, Medical cost - % of annual entitiement utilised (per annum) 20.00% 20.00%
c.  Mortality rate LIC Annuitants LIC Annuitants
(1996-98) Ultimate  (1996-98) Ultimate
5 Experience on actuarial gain/{loss) for benefit obligati and plan
(Amount Rs. in lacs)
Particulars PRMB
Year anded Year ended Year ended Year ended Year anded
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31,03.2014
Present value of DBO 76.56 81.02 53.59 54.64 50.86
Fair value of plan assets - - - - -
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit}] {76.56) (81.02) (53.59) (54.64) (50.86)
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on 443 (128) 3.89 387 425

plan liabilities

Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on - -
plan assets

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 8 years (As at 31 March, 2017: 6 years).

Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions accurring at the end of the reparting period, while holding all

other assumptions constant.

On PRMB
i) If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs, 6.32 lacs (increase by Rs. 547 lacs) [as at 31 March,

2017: decrease by Rs. 3.21 lacs (increase by Rs, 3.46 lacs)].

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one anather as some of the assumptions may be corelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the abave sensitivity analysis, the present valus of the defined benefit obiigation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reparting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Additional information relating to employee benefits oblig
The estimate of future salary increases take into account inflation, seniarity, promotion and other relevant factors.

2. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yisids of Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations

N

3. Expected rate of return an plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on investments of lI’p’F’Jnd during the estimatad term of the
abligations =
4 Net liabilities for pension, gratuities and post retirement medical benefits is disclosed in Nate 14 under the heading "Past-employment defined benefits”.
5. Expenses relating to pension and post retirement medical benefits are included in Employee benefits expense under the heading Salaries and Wages including
Bonus in Note 24 whereas expenses for reliring gratuities are included under the Contribution to Provident and Other Funds in Note 24.
{d) Actuarial ptions for p ted absences
Particulars Refer Note balow As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
(i) Discount rate (per annum) 1 7.50% 7.00%
(ii) Salary escalation rate (per annum) 3 8.00% 8.00%
Notes :

>

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of India Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of abligations

2. The compensated absences plan is funded
3. The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
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(e)

n

Provident Fund - All emplayees in the rolls of the Company receive provident fund benefits, which are administered by the Provident Fund Trust exempted under
saction 17(1)(a) of Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act 1952 set up by the Company Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at
retirement, death, incapacitation ar termination of employment. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at specified percentage of the
employees' salary to Provident Fund Trust. If the Board of Trusties is unable to pay interest at the rate declared for Employees Provident Fund by the Govt of India
under Para 60 of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 for the reason that the return on Investment is less or for any olher reason then the deficiency shail

be made good by the Company

The Actuary has carried out year-end actuarial valuation of plan's liabilities and inlerest rate guarantee obligations as at the balance sheet date using Projected Unit
Credit Method and Deterministic Approach as outlined in the Guidance Note 29 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. Based on such valuation, there is no
future anticipated shortfall with regard to interest rate abligation of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date. Further during the year, the Company's contribution of
Rs 193,68 lacs (31 March, 2017 Rs 194 84 lacs) to the Provident Fund Trust has been expensed under the 'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 24
Disclosures given hereunder are restricted to the information available as per the Actuary’s Report

As at As at

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Discount rates 7.50% 7.00%
Expected yield on pian assets 8.75% 8.75%
Guaranteed Interest Rate 8.55% 8.60%

Risk Exposure
Though its defned beneft plans, the Group is exposed to some risks, the most signifcant of which are detailed below:

Discount Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually inrease the ultimate cost of providing the above beneft thereby

increasing the value of the liability

Salary Growth Risks
The present value of the defned beneft plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants An increase in the salary of the plan

participants will increase the plan liability

Demographic Risk
In the valuation of the liability, certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Group 1s exposed to this risk to the extent of actual

experience eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the beneft cost

e




TATA SPONGE IRON LIMITED
Notes to the Condensed Cc lidated Financial Statements

36 Segment reporting

The Group has identifled business segment as the primary segment. The Group is engaged in production of sponge iron and generation of power from waste heat. Information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on manufacture of sponge
iron and generation of power, reportable segments for financial statements in accordance with ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”. The Group's aclivities/operations are primarily

(a)

wiithin indin
(b) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabillties include the respective amounts identiflable to each of the segments and also amounts
allocated on a reasonable basis. The expenses, which are not dlrectly relatable to the business segment, are shown as unallocable. Assets and llabilities that cannot be

allocated between the segments are shown as unallocable assets and liabillties respectively.

) Segmaent Disclosures Rs. In lacs
Particulars e 31 J::Le;g:g
31 March, 2018 '
‘Segment revenue
Sponge Iron 76,123.17 56,512.98
Power 7,243.08 6,464.50
Less: Inter segment transaction (1,701.71) (1.461.41)
81,664.54 61,516.07
Segment results 2
Sponge Iron 12,468.48 804.98
Power 4,750.88 432017
Unallocated income/(expenditure) 4,126.88 3,469.53
Profit Before Finance Cost and Tax 21,345.24 8,594.68
Less: Flnance costs 324.67 244 40
Profit before tax 21,020.57 8,350.28
Less: Tax expenses 6,932.62 2,473.24
Profit after tax 14,087.95 5,877.04
Other comprehenslve income 111.25 (136.15)
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,199.20 5,740.89
Segment assets and liabilities Rs. in lacs
Particulars L goat
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Segment assets
Sponge Iron 44,672.29 38,309.91
Power 4,673.23 4,722.96
Unallocated 72,290.47 61,556.04
121,436.99 104,568.91
Segment liabilities " .
Sponge Iron 12,768.36 10,479.16
i 711.24 678.85
Unallocated 9,303.79 6,938.64
22,783.39 18,096.65
Name of customers who contributed 10% or more to the Gl'gup's revenue:
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Name of customer (IUETTU A".‘°““'
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Sponge Iron
K.D Iron & Steel Co. 7,898.63 6,454 49
Lhaki Steels & Rolling Private Limited 9,328.79 9,793.17
Sponge Sales India Pvt. Ltd 8,028.80 -
TATA Intemational Ltd. 7,848.18
Power
Tata Steel Limited 5457.67 5,003.09
38,662.07 _21.25075

for
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Particulars

Additions to Non - Current assets

As at
31 March, 2018

Rs. in lacs
As at
31 March, 2017

Sponge ron 682.55 28.91
Power - -
Unallocated - -
3 6§82.55 28.91
Depreciation and amortisation
Sponge Iron 989.34 1,031.10
Power 240.94 245,21
Unallocated s =
1,230.28 1,276.31
36 Disclosure refating to provisions as per Ind AS 37- Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions for interest on income tax and others have been recognised in the financial statements considering the foilowing:
(i) The Group has a present obligation as a result of past event
(i) Itis probable that an outfiow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settie the obligation; and
(iiy A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Rs. in lacs
| Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 3t March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Carrying amount as at beginning of the 2,512.77 2,723.99 601.00 601.00 1,589.31 1,587.00
year
Provision made during the year 25.98 240.78 - 298.60 231
Amount paid during the year - 452.00 - - » I
Unused amount reversed during the year - B - -
Carrying amount as at the end of the year 2,538.75 2.512.77 601.00 601.00 1,887.91 1,589.31

VAT, entry tax and sales tax including interest
thereon

Nature of obligation

Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power
distribution companies

Interest on income tax

Expected timing of resultant outflow On decision by competent authority

On decision by competent authority

On decision by competent authority

The above matters are under dispute with
authorities

Indication of uncertainty about those
outflows

The above matters are under dispute with
authorities

The above matters are under dispute with

authorities

Major assumptions concerning future The matter is with higher authorities for

The matter is with higher authorities for
adjudication. Provision has been made on

The malter is with higher authorities for

|adjudication. Provision has been made on

i.e., amount of any asset that has been
recognised for that expected

events adjudication, Provision has been made on the
grounds of prudence the grounds of prudence lhe grounds of prudence
Amount of any expected reimbursement, |Nil Nil Nil NIl Nil Nil

reimbursement

3

Q3

Assets hypothecated as Security

The carrying amount of inventories and trade receivables (Note 09 and 10 respectively) are hypothecated as Primary security and Property, piant and equipment (Note 03)

hypothecated as collateral security for working capital requirements

38 OPERATING LEASES

The Group has cancellable operating lease agreements for office spaces and residentiat accommodations, the tenure of which generally vary from less than a year to 3 years. Terms
of such lease include option for renewal on mutually agreed terms. Operating lease rental expenses aggregating Rs. 79.29 lacs (31 March 2017: Rs. 76.49 lacs) have been debited to

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b
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39 EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 31 March, 2018 : Rs. 179.22 lacs (year ended 31 March, 2017 Rs. 218.70 lacs)

a.
b. Amount spent during the year ended 31 March, 2018 (figures in brackets represents amount for the previous year)
Rs. in lacs
. Paid Yet to be Paid Total
Si No. Particulars
(A) (B) (Ay+(B)
(0] Construction / acquisilion of any asset - - -
) 6 Q]
(i) On purposes other than (j) above 125.36 55.10 180.46
(166.96) (52.25) (219.21)
Total 125.36 55.10 180.46
(166.98) (52.25) (219.21)

40 The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

41 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MCA) has nolified the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Ame
amendments refate to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, Ind AS 28, Investments

ndment Rules, 2018 on 28 March 2018, The rules among other key
in Assoclates and Joint Venturas, Ind AS 40,

Investment Property, and Ind AS 115, Revenue from Conlracls with Customers.These rules come into farce from 1 April 2018.The company is avalualing the effect of the same with

respect to the changes in the GAAP.

42 Disclosure of additional information as requierd by schedule Il

Net Assets i.e totai assets minus total

Share in profit or loss

N . liabilities
s ti
ame SL.entity he As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated net Rs. In tacs consolidated net Rs. In lacs
1 2 3 4 5 6
TATA Sponge Iron Limited (Parent) 2017-18 99.88% 98,652.60 99.98% 14,087.95
TSIL Energy Limited (Subsidiary) 2017-18 0.12% 116.01 0.02% 2.23
Total 100.00% 98,768.61 100.00% 14,090.18
Share in other comprehensiv income Share in total comprehensiv income
As % of Amount As % of Amount
Name of entity Year consolidated Rs. In lacs consolidated Rs. In lacs
other total
comprehensiv comprehensiv
income/(Loss) income/(Loss)
1 2 3 4 5 6
TATA Sponge Iron Limited (Parent) 201718 100.00% 111.25 99.98% 14,199.20
TSIL Energy Limited (Subsidiary) 2017-18 - - 0.02% 2.24
Totat 100.00% 111.25 100.00% 14,201.44

43 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group, except a sum of Rs. 4.28 lacs, which is held

in abeyance due to pending legal cases.

44 Details of Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

Name of susidia Princioal activi I Place.o! Proportion of ownership interest and
Y rincipal activity incorporation and voting power held by the group
operation
As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
. - Generation and sale of
TSIL Energy Limited (Subsidiary) power* India 100% 100%

* The Group was incorporated to primarily engage in generation and sale of power and is yet to carry out such activities
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